, STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE _
DEPARTMENT OF fH,EAL;:_I:H AND HUMAN SERVICES
" DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Loti A, Weaver ' 129 PLEASANT STREET, C(‘jNCOR’D, NH 03301
Interini Commissioner _ ’ 603:271-9544 _ 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

) . * Faxr 603-271-4332  TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 wiww.dhhs.nh.gov .
- Katja S, Fox S TR :
Director: ’ '

September 4, 2024

His Excellency, Governor.Christopher T. Sununu
.and:the Honorable Council

State House .- .

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 -.

£

P - REQUESTED ACTION: . S
Authorize the Departrent of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,

to enter:into a Sole Source contract with Thiive Survivor S 1pport Center (VC#155188) Concord,
- NH, in the amount of $712,830 for the provision of a housing services continuum of care projéct,
with the option”to rénewifor up :to-fivé (5) additional years,” effective October 1,72024," upon’
- Governor ard Couricil approval, ‘through*September_SO, 2029. 100% Federal Funds. "+
“** "I ‘Funds are available in State Fiscal-Yéar 2025 and are anticipated to be available in State

‘Fiscal Years 2026 throtigh 2030, upoh thé availa bility afid continued ‘appropriation of finds in the ;
future ‘operating hudget, with-the ‘authority'to adj ust budget-line ‘items within the price limitation
. and entumbrances between'state fiscal years through the'Budget Office, if needed and justified. .
105-95-42:423010-79270000 HEALTH: AND SOCIAL ;sévacsgf"Deer OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN. SVCS, HHS: HUMAN ‘SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, 'HOUSING =.SHELTER
PROGRAM. = . -~ ™ .o 00 L e T T e

: Total |,
Amount

State |  Class/

| Fiscal Year|  Account’  Class T|t|e’ _JOb' Numt?er

2025 | '074-500589 ‘" Grantsfor Pub Asst and Relief [ 42307050 | ~ $106,925’
(2026 | 07:500589- - | Grants for Pub Asstand Relief | 42307050 | $142,566.
|* 2027, [ 07-500589 | Grants for Pub Asst and Relief | 42307050 | = $142,566°
. 2028 | 07500589 | Granis for Pub Asst and Rafief 1742307050 | $142,566°
| 2020 | 07-500589 " | Grants for Pub Asstand Relief | 42307050 | $142,566°
2030 | .07-500589 | Grants for Pub Asst and Relief | ~ 42307050 | = $35.641"
L - g L -_Subtotal | $712,83

@

_ _ .- . - EXPLANATION . - .
_ This request is Sole Source because U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) regulations require the Department to specify the vendor's name during their
- annual -Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive application process. HUD reviews and scores |
. vendor -applications based on policy and critéfia outlined in the federal Notice of Funding -
Opportunity. HUD subsequéntly awards funding “based on strict federal criteria and specifiés

' .
.
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eligible activities._pdpdlatiohs to be sé’rved, &xpected performance outcomes, time fremes for the

application competition, and Departmental agreements. The Department receives notification of

the awards and signed grant agreements from HUD several months later; at which time
agreements, such as the one contarned in this request, can be executed.

A total of approx1mately four (4) households will be served at any given time annually,
through a Permanent Housmg prOJect ,

The Contractor, usmg the federally required Housing Frrst model, will provide Permanent
Supportive Housing services that offer long-term rental and leasing assistance for participants
with a disability, as defined by HUD. Permanent Supporting Housing includes supportwe services
designed to meet the individual needs of program partlcipants

Additionally, the Contractor will work to maximize each participant’s abllrty to ‘five more
independently by providing connections to communlty services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual reports provrded by the
Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
: contractual agreements

As referenced in Exhxblt A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Prowsrons of the attached

agreement, the parhes have the option lo extend the agreement for up five (5) additional years,

contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available fundrng, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. _

Should the Governor and Council not authorrze this request, there will be fewer permanent
hoﬁsrng opt:ons and supportrve services available, leaving -vuinerable individuals -and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housmg and supportrve serwce programs.

Area served ‘Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 14.267, FAIN # NHO165D1T002300. -

in the_ event that the Federal- Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectf lys 1tted

LOI'I A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to uch:eue health and mdependence
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4FD34897-BDAO—4}3?2-A1?D -8ABDID4EECT1 - F()RM NUMBER P-37 (véréion 2/23/2023)

. Subject: Continuim of Care - CCCNH (88-2025. DBH-19-CONTI- 01)

k-

. Notice: Thrs agreement and allof its’ attachments shall become public ipon submission to ‘Governor and
Executive Couificil for approval Any information that is private, confidential or propnetary must

be clearly 1dent1ﬁed to the agency and agreed to in Wntm«T prlor to mgmng the contract

T

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshlre and the’ Contractor hereby mutually agree as folIows

GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1. IDENTIFICATION;
1 1.1 State Agenc':yNarne.;

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

.

New Hampshlre Department of Health angd. Human Serv1ces

Concord, NH 03301 3857

1.3. Contractor Name

1.4 Contractor Address
85 South State Street

Thrive Survivor Support Center.
’ . Concord, NH 03301

L5 Contractor Phone “| L6 Account Unit and C]ass: L7 Ccmp-letion Date- 1.8 Price Lintitation_
“Number - TBD - N : 1$712,830
|866-841-6229° - o 9/30/29 1

| 1.9 Contractmg Ofﬁcer for State Agency

1.10 State Agency -Telepllone .Numb er
Robert W. Moore, Dtrector L : :

(603) 271-9631

1.12 Name and Title.of Contractor Slgnatory

1T Contractor Sig'nature'
Jess1 ca vaughn-Martin

9/5/2024
Decusmnedby

WG{ /]/a;,g; “}f\m{’ln )ate

FFDSBEBCEC5D437..

EXECUt'I ve D"I rector

L 13 Srate Agency mgnamre . -9/86, /2024 ) : 1 14 Name and Title of State Agency Slgnatory <
Docusigned by: e T - o patricia M. T1"I'Iey . Lo
[dm"' M. ‘T'“"‘( o Date , | Associate Commissioner L .
BAGFBIBFSBFOACS, P . N

L 15 Approval by the I\'-l'l Department of Admtmstratlon Division of Personnel ( if apphcabie)

By: . L. . L . Dtrector On

1.16, Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Executlon) {if apphcab!e)

' —DocuSigned by: 9/6/2024
By: ohleL QM"‘:M |

b 74373484494 1460... .
1.17 Approval by the (Jovemor and l:.xecutlve Cou.nml (if apphcable)

G&C ltem number G&C Meetmg Date:
p initial
Page 1 of 4. l QTYTV\

Contractor- Imtla]s

R o . Dateaszom
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the- Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the.

attached EXHIBIT B whlch is incorporated herein by reference’

(“Serwces”)

3. EFF ECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary,” and subject to the approval of the Govemor' and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreenient, unless no such approval i required, in

which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the -

Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
(“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contracter, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services.performed.

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified inblock 1.7."

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
.the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or exccutive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies

the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and

the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT.B, in whole orin part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The coniract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXIIIBIT C
which is iricorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
‘contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no

event shall the total of all'payments authorized, or actually made .

hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complefe reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

Page 2 of 4

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation-to the
Contractor for the Services. '
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounis

otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those '

hqmdated amounts required or permltted by N.H. RSA 80 7
through RSA. 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State. :

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY. A

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Centractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. . In

-addition, if this Agreentent is funded in any part by monies of the

United Statés, the Contractor shall comply with all federal

executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,

regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to

implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply

with all applicable intellectual property laws. '
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not

discriminate against employees or applicants for employment .
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,

physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin, .
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative

action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or

federal law., The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors

comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.

6.3 No payments or. transfers of value by Contractor or its

representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be

‘made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial

bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement. ‘

. PERSONNEL.

7 1 The Contractor shall at its own expense prov1de all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall'be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified i block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining to this

Agieement.
(a1

Contractor Initials

Dated/572024
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:

8. EVENT OF DEFAULTIREMEDIES -

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the '
Contractor shall constitute an event of defauit hereunder (“Event
of Default”) s -

8.1.1 failure to perform the Servlces sattsfactorlly or on schedule
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or .

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the. .

‘State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this

Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumed.
to the Staté upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for'any reasoi.

10.3 Disclosure of data, inforfnation and other records shall be
govemned by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.

Disclosure requires prior written approval. of the State. -

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default the State may '

take. any ‘one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1. give the Coritractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be reniedied within, ih the absence. ofa
greater or lesser specification of time,. thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this: Agreement effective, two (2) calendar days
aftet glvmg the- Contractor notice-of termination;

“8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspendmg all payments-to ‘be.made under this
Agreement and ordenng that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwnse accrue to the Confractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such timé as the State. deterrines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never bé' pald

" to the Contractor; . L
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice speclfymg the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor-any damages.the State sufférs by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or. e
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written ‘notice speclfymg the Event of

_Default, treat the Agreement as bréached, términate the Agieement
and pursue any of ifs remedles atlaw or in equlty, or both

9. TERMINATION ‘
9,1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8 ithe State may, at:its sole,
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whele or in
“part, by thirty’ (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
* 9.2 Inithe event of an early termination 6f this Agreement for any
reason other thap the eompletmn of ‘the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to-the Contracting Officer,
not later than “fifieen (15) calendar days after the date "of
termination, a report (“Termination Repott™) describing in detail
_all a§erv1ces performed and the contract price -earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at ‘the State’s
discretion; the Contractor shall, within fifteen (I5) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement‘

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIPIDISCLOSURE

10.1 As used in-this Agreement; the word “Property” shall mean
all dats, information and things developéed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired .or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae,” .surveys;, maps, c¢harts, sound ‘recordings, video
recordmgs, pictorial reproductlons drawmgs analyses, graphic
- representations,- computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unﬁmshed

Page 3of4

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is-in all respegts an

-independént.contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of

the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation :or- other emoluments
prov1ded by the Statc to its employees "

12, ASSIGNMENTIDELEGATION!SUBCONTRACTS

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignmeit, delegation, or
other transfer .of any interést in this Agreement. No- such -
assignment, delegatmn or other transfer shall be effectwe thhout
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12,2 Change ‘of Control shal[
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means {a) merger, .
consolidation, or a transaction or series of'related transactions in
which a third party, together with ity affiliates; becomes the direct
or mdlrect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more-of the voting

.shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the

Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantlally all of the assets of
the Contractor. ot

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontxacted Dby the Contractor
witliout prior writter notice and consent of the State. .
12.4 The State is entitled to copies: of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be’bound by any provisions
.contained in a subcontract or an assigninent agréement to whlch it .
isnota party ) - - '

"

13, INDEMNIFICATION The Contractor shall mdemmfy,

defend, and hold harmless the State its officers, and employees
from . and against all actions, -claims, - damiages;, dermands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expehses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ “fees, arising out- of or .

telating to this Agreement dircctly or indirectly arising from death,’

personal  injury, property damage, ° intellectual = property
infringement, or other claims asserted agamst the State, its offi icers,
or employees caused by the acts or ‘omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct,:or.fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs' incurred. by the -Contractor arising undér this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, rothirig herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immimnity, which immunity is hereby resetved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall ; survwe the termmatton

of this Agreement, * . Lo - '

1,'

Initial

. Contractor Initials

Dateg7 572024
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14. INSURANCE. R
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and

continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor-

or assignee to obtain and maintain in force the followmg
insurance:

14.1.1 commerclal general lrabrhty insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than.
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2, 000 000 aggregate O eXCess;

'-and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property. -

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
" policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire.by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,

14.3 The Coniractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in Jblock 1.9,”or any successor, a certificate(s) of
‘insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement, At ‘the

request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor -

shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement, The certificate(s) of

insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are’

incorporated herein by reference..

15, WORKERS’ COMPENSATI()N

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees certifies and

warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,

the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'

Compensation”), )

- 15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcoitractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers’ Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The

- Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of .Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described i N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, ot any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under appllcable State of New

* Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the

performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
- with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rlghts or to enforce any other or any. subsequent breach.

17, NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the tinie of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses gwen in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein,

18. AMENDMENT, This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshlre unless no such approval is required under the
crrcumstances pursuant to State law, Tule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. .
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed

in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except

where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The.
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party. ,
19.2 Any actions arising. out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to bmdmg
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshrre which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof,

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,

- the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered mto for -

the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or

.impli€d, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,

benefit, or remedy of afy nature upon any other person

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated -
herem by reference.

24, FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent _|unsdtct10n to be
contrary to amy state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement wrl[ remain in full force and effect,

26. - ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding  between the parties, and supersedes  all prior
agreements and understandings wrlh respect to the subject matter”

hereof.
- Initial
Page 4 of 4 l JXYTV\

" Contractor. Initials
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" New Hampshrre Department of Health and Human Services:
Coritinuum of Care - TSSC ’

EXHIBIT A

" Revisions to Stan'da‘rd Agreement Protlisio_ns.

1. Revrsrons to Form P-37, General Provrsrons

1.1.

12

13,

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 341, Effectlve DatelCompIetron of Semces is amended C
as follows: :

: 3.'1. Notwrthstandrng any prov13|on of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to

the .approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire-as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties'hereunder shall become eﬁective on October 1, 2024 (“Effective Date”).

Paragraph 3., Etfectl\re Date/Completron of Services, |s“amended by addin’g
subparagraph 3 3. as follows:

3.3. The partres may extend the Agreement for up to five (5) addrtronal years-from-
“the" Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
. funding,-agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor and Executive
- Council. : :

Paragraph 12., Assrgnment/DeIegatlon/Subcontracts is:a'mended by‘ adding
subparagraph 12 3. as follows

_ 12.3, Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual condrtlons as the Contractor

and the Contractor is responS|bIe to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written agreements with all’
subcontractors specifying - the work .to be performed, and if applicable, a-
Business Associate - -Agreement “in accordance with the Health Insurance
'Portabr[rty and Accountabrhty Act. Written agreements shall specify how
J corrective” action shall be managed ‘The, Contractor shall manage the
"‘subcontractor S performance onan ongorng basis and take correctlve actionas
necessary The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of all
stbcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notrfy the State of any .
rnadequate subcontractor’ performance . ‘

' . . n . B ::jmml
. $8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 ' - A1.2 : Coritractor Initials

Thrive Suwivor-support Center - - Page 1 of 1 o o Daté

9/5/2024
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. New Hampshire' Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care - TSSC -

EXHIBIT B

-~

1. Statement of Work ~
1.1. Continuum of Care

Scope of Services

_1.1.1. Rapid Re-Housing Domestic Violence (RRH DV) Project

1.1.1.1.

. §5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Surviver Support Center

The Contractor must provide -a DV Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)
program, in this Agreement, that is targeted to serve four (4)
households at any given time annually, who are experiencing
homelessness, as defined by HUD, that delivers supportive
services, including case management, and either short-term (1to
3 months), or medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance,
based on participants needs. The Contractor must: '

1.1.1.1.1.

1.1.11.2.

1.1.1.1.3.

1.1.1.1.4,

14115, -

11.1.186.

Page 10f 18 : Date

Provide supportive services for no longer than six (6)
months after rental assistance stops.

Re-evaluate, at least annually, whether the program

participants lack sufficient resources' and support .

networks necessary to retain .housing without
Continuum of Care (CoC) assistance and the types
and amounts of assistance that the program
participants need fo retain housing.

Ensure that program participants meet with their case

' manager at least once per morith to assist the

program participant with obtaining and maintaining
long-term housing ‘stability. The project is exempt
from this requirement if the Violence Against Women
Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925 et seq.) or-the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act (42 U.S.C.
10401 et seq.) prohibits the recipient carrying out the
project from making its housing conditional on the
participant's acceptance of ‘services. The Contractor

. must integrate program participants into the

community and promote housing stability. ™

Assist program participants with developing. or
increasing their skills ard obtaining income, and/for
employment.

Provide or connect program participants with
supportive services. o

Support and document appropriate efforts to
enhance the participant's ability to reach self-
sufficiency. _ . '

) ’ [l\ﬁ{tial
- B-20 Contractor Initials L
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EXHIBIT B

F

.1.1.1.2. . The Contractor must provrde a Raprd Re- Housrng, .Permanent

Housmg Domest|c Violenée program, in this . Agreement for-
“individuals, youth andlor famllres Participants must be ﬂeelng, or
‘ attemptlng ‘to - flee;- domestic - violehce while - experiencing

homelessness, or while at.imminent. risk- of homelessness as -
defrned“by HUD.. The Contractor must: . ° :

'1.1.1.2.1. ' Provrde |mmedrate asslstance with- ldentlfymg safe
. and confidential-housing optlons W|th the support of
-Contractors staff ; Lo el :

S 1 .1 .1 .2.2.' Prowde |mmed1ate referrals to assrst wrth safety and -
v o __ssecurlty concerns ' .

~_1.1.1.2.3. | Provide parhorpants with access to tralnlng and
' “. . support:groups:that focus. on trauma recovery from .
.trauma ‘and-othér. supports '

j.‘.::'1 1 1 24 -"’ASSIS'[ parhmpants in finding long-term safe and
'permanent housrng o l

1.1.1.2.5., :Prowde supportlve serwces lncludlng at least
da e -f*monthly case: management and cohhect parhcrpants

S WIEH, supportwe services 10 help part|c|pants obtaln: o

: and. remarn in permanent housmg

Wy
i

1 2 Prowswns Applrcable to AII Servrces

’l 2. 1. ‘The Contractor must adhere to all terms and condltlons as set forth rn the
approved HUD Pro;ectApphcatlon #SF-424 e . o
B ‘.2.'2:" “The Contractor muist ensufe that part101pants meet at Ieast one; or more, of
e 1 the quallf‘ cat|ons of homelessness as defi ned by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.
123, The Contractor must part|c|pate in the regronal and CoC CE System
124, For the purpdses of this Agreement all references to days means busmess‘
e days; excludlng state and federal holldays ‘ - -
- l:2.5; : !The Contractor must pal‘tIClpate in meetmgs wrth the Department as requested
= .7 - bythe Department . .- S
. 1.2.6: The Contractor must ensure staff part|C|pate |n tralmng as reqmred by the
. Department . . . . .
1247, ' ~,The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not Ilmrted to:
R | 2 740 Ut|l|zat|on of the Housmg First model that ensures ‘
- 1 .2.7.1 .1 . Barners to entering- housmg are not lmposed beyond
. those required by federal regulahons or. state laws
and : R
SSZ(‘)L25DBH-1Q-CONTVO‘I Lo :“ EB'Z_'O o o Contractor lnmals

f',LThrjve‘Suryiyc)rStjpport Center Lo - . Page2of18" -
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EXHIBIT B

128

1..2.7.1.2. Partrcrpatlon termlnates only for the most - severe
. reasons; after available options.to maintain housing
“are exhausted, as detailed |n HUD regu[atlons 24

CFR: 578 91 .

1.‘2.7:2. Development of an ongomg assessment of Housmg and
Supportive Sefvices that is’ ‘provided to participants in- order to
- deliver assistance in obtainirig necessary skills and resources to

‘live in the community’ lndependently -

The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and

;communlty resources.to meet basic-needs including, but not limited to:

housing, safety, food mental health and medical care. The Contractor must

" ensure:

1.2.9.

| 1,2.10

1211,

i 1242

" 1.2.8.1.. .Part[clpants increase safety through plannlng and trauma mformed ;

‘ resource pl’OVISIOﬂ

+1.2.8.2. _{I.:_Facmtatlon of the, transition of rndlvrduals youth, and’ families

experlenclng homelessness to permanent housing and mammrzed .
i -self-suft" C|ency,( :

,1.2.53.3. : Partlcrpants are empowered by Contractors program to rncrease :

* safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants are offéred connections to assistance in app!ymg for

~ Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
-advooacy and referrals to free tegal services; and T

1 .2.8.5.' "Households with children will be connected to education resources,
school staff, and chlldcare serwces based on need.

‘The’ Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the
= program partrmpants and adjust the services accordingly. -

The Contractor must” ensure their staff assist ‘with referrals for substance
misuse, mental health, medical-needs, peer support, or any other need for

“referral as5|stance identified by the partrcapant

The Contractor must assess pl‘Ojth outcomes to include part|C|pants movmg .
into and retalnlng permanent housing, as well as participants’ connections with

. community .and ;- mainstream services, to increase: mdependence and

household income to.sustain permanent housmg

" The "Contractor must actlvely partlc:lpate in reviews oonduoted by the
Department .onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department orHUD, on
an annual ba5|s of as otherW|se requested by the Department, that must :

. include, but are not limitéd to, participant files and financial data to.ensure
: comphancewrth contract objeotlves state po[|c1es and federal regulations. The

' Contractor must:

'$§-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 : ' B20 ¢ L Contractor Initials L

Thriye' Survivor Support Center . L o Page 30f18 . " ' _ " . .. Dale
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-'EXHIBIT B

1213,

1.2.1 2-.1 . Ensure the Department and HUD. have access to partlmpant files;
‘ 1.2.12.2; 'Ensure flnanmal data is avallable as requested by the Department

and/ or HUD; and

, . ~ '
1.2.12.3. : Prowde other mformatlon that aSSIStS in determ:nmg contract

complrance as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

Notwnthstandtng the com‘” dentlahty procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD,:the- HUD Office . of the Inspector .General, -and the
Comptroller. General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatlves must have the right of access to all books, documents,

E papers or othér records of the Coritractor that are pertment to the (CoC) grant,

. 1.2.15.

in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, "and transcnpts These rights
of access are not llmtted to the required retention period,.but last as long as

B . therecords are-retained.
. 1214,

The Contractor must adhere to federal and state fi nancral -and cont" dentlallty
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC| program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the dapplicable- NOthG of - Fundlng Opportunlty (NOFO) CoC Pl'OjeCt
Appllcatlon approved by HUD.

The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer _all questlons :
related .to; this: Agreement from*representatives of state or fedefal agencies
who.may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, actlwtles

and ‘conduct an. lnspectlon ‘of records and documents,

. 1.216.

1247,
' -the - requirement “definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of

'1.2.18.

The Contractor ‘must. prowde services according to the HUD regulatlons

_outlined in Public Law 102- 550, .24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project: Application "#SF:424 and other wiitten approprrate HUD

pol10|es/d|rect|ves except for where HUD walvers are granted. _
The ‘Contractor must ensure part|0|pat1ng mdlwduals youth, and families meet

homelessness quahﬁcatlons -as defined in HUD regulatlons 1o be eligible for
confract services, as appllcable to the project.

Per The McKmney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transrtlon to
Housmg ~ (HEARTH) . Act of 2009,
https://www. hud qov/srtes/documentslHAAA HEARTH PDF: -

12181 The Contractor .must utlllze the New Hampshlre Homeless :
Management lnformatlon System (NH HMIS) as the primary .
reportlng tool for outcomes and activities of shelfer and housing
programs funded through this contract. .

: 1.2‘.1’8.2. The Contractor must ‘ensure all programs are Ilcensed fo prowde

- client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,

§8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 - .. 07 Bao - : ‘ " Contracior Initials ng

Thiive Survivor Support Center . ¢ . . % Pagedof18 _ oL - -. Date
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EXHIBIT-.B

per 24 CFR 578, and as' detalled in the followmg publication from

“The . National . Network to -End  Domestic 'Vlolence (NNEDV)

1.2.1 8;3.

htip //qlhrn org/wordpress1/wp-

-content/uploads/2018/08/Comnarab!e Database-for—DV-

NNEDV df. e
The Contractor must follow NH. HMIS pollcy, mcludmg specrt’ c

“information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
- time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K-for Information

-Security. reqwrements and Exhibit | for Prlvacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with. all record keeplng requn‘ements as set forth
-~ by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103. ' .

: 1.2".?0 The Contractor must establish and maintain standard operating procedures fo
~*  ensure CoC'program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must estabhsh and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD

~and the Department to deterrnlne Contractor’ comphance lncludlng but not S

'Ilmlted to
"1.2.20.1. .

Contmuum of Care Records. The: Contractor must malntaln the
following dooumentatlon re[ated to establlshlng and operatmg a

‘ CoC

1 2.20.1. 1 Records of Homelees Status. The Contractor must
maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
~ accordance wrth 24 CFR 576.500(b}; .

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness. Status The
Contractor must maintain records that establish “a

" risk-of homelessness” status of each individual or

- .family-who receives CoC homelessness. prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

© 1;2.2(_).1'.3. Records of. Reasonable Belief of Immlnent Threat of

.. S5 2025—DBH 19 CONTI 01

. Thrive Survivor Support Center

- Harm. The Contractor must mairtain documentation. *

- of each program part;c:pant who moved to-a different

- CoC due to -imminent threat of further domestic

* violence, datlng wolence sexual assault or stalking,

as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor

- must retain documentatlon that includes, but is not
limited to:™  °

1,2.20.1.3.1. 'The original incidence, of domestic |
) ,wolenc'e dating violence, sexual

* assault, or stalking, only if the original _

violence is not already documented in- -

‘the ™ program participant's case file.:

This may be written observatlon of the

. . I?a!
B-2.0 o _Contractor Iritials: L

 Page5oft L Dae 9/10/2024




Contmuum of Care TSSC

o

<

4

Ty i g g e

S 4220432

L 42202 F

SS-2025-DBH 19-CONTI 01

Tthe Sumvor Support Center :

o housmg or service prowder a Ietter or

other documentatlon from a victim-

-service provider, soGial worker legal

a53|stanoe provnder - pastoral - -

* counselor, mental health provider, or -

other professional * from . whom " the.
victim has sought aSS|stance medlcal' '

-+ or dental records court records or law-
_enforcement records; or . written .

- certification by the' program. parhclpant
' to whom the violence’ occurred or by

the head of household and -
The reasonable bellef of |mm|nent )

threat of further  domestic Violence,
- dating Violence, or sexual ‘assault or
' stalkmg, which would include ‘threats

froma third-party, such as a friend or .

vfamlly member of the perpetrator ofthe
'~ violence. This-. ‘may- .be- written .

observation by the housmg or servnce_
prowder a.. letter or . . other

. documentation from a victim service

provider,  social. - worker legal

‘assustance . provider, pastoral

counselor mental ‘health prowder or
other ‘professional “from whom the
V|ct|m has sought assistance; current

'restralnlng order; recent court orderor -

other court records; law enforcément

_report or." records; ‘communication
-records: from “the perpetrator of the

vnolence or famlly members or friends
of the perpetrator of . .the" violence,
mcludmg emails, voicemails, text .
messages, and social media posts; or
a .written certlftcatlon by the program

.partrclpant to whom the. ‘violence

occurred or the head of household

Records of Annual Income For each program partrcapant who

receives housing-assistance where rent or an ‘occupancy charge is

S
.B20

‘ PaggBof18. . -

R . paid by the .program -participant, the Contractor must keep the
‘ followmg dooumentatlon of. annual income: .

Contractor Inma[s .
9/10/2024-' _
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. -EXHIBI'T B

122022,

122023,

© 1.2.20.2.4.

1.2.20.3.

1.2.20.3.2.
S aSS|stance requrrement in 24 CFR 578 91.

$5-2025-DBH-18-CONT01

Thrive Survivor Support Center ’

,

1.2.20.2.1.

Income evaluatlon form specrﬁed by HUD and .

' completed by the Contractor

Source documents whlch rnclude but are not limited
to: :

: 1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent-wage statement;
..1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment _ compensation”

statement;

" 1.2.20.2.2.3. ‘Public benefits ‘statement, and bank’

statements for the assets held by the
program. partrc:pant and

1 .2,20.2.2.4 Incomé received before the date of the
o evaluation. :

-To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third

party, - whrch may ‘include an employer or a

government benefits -administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor’s intake staff of the oral
verification. by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
penod or : :

To the-extent that source documents and th|rd party"

, venﬂcatlon are’ unobtatnable the written. certification

by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably. expected ‘

. 1o receive over the three (3) month period followmg
-the evaluation. L o

Program _ Paiticipant ‘Records. - In ° add:tlon to evrdence of -

homelessness status or at—nsk—of—homelessness status, as
- applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document :

“122031

- Paga7of18 o “ . Date

The services and assistance provided to that
program’ participant, including evidence ‘that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment. of

‘services for those program partlcrpants that remain in

the program for: more than a year.and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and 1nclud|ng case-
management. services as provided in 24 CFR
578. 37(a)(1 )(n)(F) and

Where appllcable compliance wrth the termlnatlon of

: L I?lal
B-2.0 ' S . ) Contractor Initials [-—-
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EXHIBIT B

1.221.

o 0 1.2.21.3. The other confllcts requrrements in 24 CFR 578 95(d). .
Y 1.2.22 The Contragtor- ‘must develop, implement and retain a copy- of the personal _
o c confllct-of-lnterest pollcy that complles with, the requlrements in 24 CFR

, B78, 95 lncludrng récords supportlng any exceptlons to the persona[ conﬂlct-
_ o of—lnterest prohlbltlons X y
- 1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retarn documentatton of compllance WIth
B 2. 23 1. The home]ess parhcrpat:on requrrements in accordance wrth 24
CFR 578 75(9) G
1:2.-_23.2. The faith based actlwtles reqwrements in accordance with 24 CFR
"578. 87(b); o
1.2.233.. Requrrements of 24 CFR 578 93(0) for- afflrmatlvely furtherlng fair
* housing by malntarnlng co'pie's of all marketing, outreach and other
_ . materials used to inform ellglble persons of the program;
; 1.2.23.4. Other federal reqmrements in 24 CFR 578 99, as apphcable
5 e _
. 1 .2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other-
: records as specified by HUD; and ' , :
1 2 23.6: - Procurement requnrements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.
'1.:2.24 Conﬂdentlallty’ In* addition to meetlng spec|f|c confldentralrty and securlty
: requrrements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
"|mp1ement written procedures to ensure:
1.2.24_.,1¢ ‘All’ records contalnlng protected [dentlfylng lnfcrmatlon of any
' partrcrpant who applies for and/or recelves CoC assrstance are
kept secure and confi dentlal :
' '58.20250BH-19.CONTI-01 - B-20 -; - L ‘Gontractor Ifals

o 1 2 20 4 Housrnq Standards The Contractor must‘retain documentatlon of

compliance..with:the housing standards in- 24 CFR 578. 75(b)'
mcludmg lnspeotlon reports. - °

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
- . supportive services provided-under the Contractor's program and .
the amounts spent-on those services. The Contractor must keep
-+ . documentation that the records.were reviewed at least annually
and that the serwce package offered to program partrcrpants was .
adjusted as necessary

t

......

1221 1 The orqanlzatlonal conﬂlct-of-lnterest requrrements in 24 CFR
"~ 978. 95(c) o

.1.2.21 2. " The CoC board conﬂlct-of-lnterest reqmrements “in 24 CFR

578. 95(b) -and

L pate 9/10/2024
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EXHIBIT B

1 2 24 2 The address or'location of any family violerice prOJect assisted with
: ,CoC funds, are not made public, except with written -authorization. -
.of the person responsrble for the operation of the prOJect and '

1.2.24.3.- The address or location of any housing of a program parttcipant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
_ policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and

© . local laws regardlng privacy and obligations of confi dentrallty

1 3 Contract Admlmstratlon

1.3.1.

-The Contractor must have appropnate Ievels of staff to attend all meetmgs or

trammgs requested by the Department’s Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS),

- mcludmg fraining in data security and confidentiality,.according to state and

S 1.3.2..

1.33. .

federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five (5) workmg days in advance -of each
meetlng

“The ‘Contractor must mform the Department of any stafflng changes within

thrrty (30) days of the change.

The Department shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at DHHS's
discretion, of the Contractor's . participant files and at least oné month of

* financial data to ensure compliance with the contractual objectives.

14. Reportmg Requlrements

1.4.1.

1 4.3.

14.4:

1.4.5.

1.5. Background Checks

The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the

_Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the
- form requrred or specified, by the Department.

142,

The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services
" 129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results
of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in.the Contractor's

~ application submitted to HUD for the relevant. fiscal year COC Notice of

Funding Opportunlty (NOFO).

- The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department |n )
. comphance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department polrmes and procedures

The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Départment,
in aformat specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographlc performance and service data.

‘{“L.

J

) N . " ?ﬁal
.. $8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 . " . B20 R . * Cantractor Initials L@ "
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EXHIBlT B

- :1.5:1.

:-Pnor fo permlttlng any individual to prowde services under thls Agreement the‘

o ‘Contractor must ensure that said individuak has undergone

1.5.1.1.  Acriminal background check, at the Contractor’s expense and has

no_convictions for crimes that represent evidence of béhavior that
oould endanger individuals served under this. Agreement;

1.5.1.2. - A name search of the Department’s Bureau of Elderly ‘and Adult
o Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with -

results -indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger . °

individuals. served under:this’ Agreement and

'1.5.1.3. A name search of the Departments DlVISlOI‘I for Children, Youth

and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
lndlwduals served under this Agreement. -

1.6. Confi dentlal Data

1.7.

. g . ‘ . - ' T ) . i o I?tial
§5-2025DBHA9-CONTIO1 . -+ . B20 ' Conttaciof Initials: L(g

Thrivé Surdivor Support Center | Pagé 10 of 18 ‘ SRR . *Dat

1.6.1.

162,

; The Contractor must meet all mformatlon secunty and prlvacy reqwrements_ -

as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department’s-Information

N :.Secunty Requrrements Exhlblt as referenced below.

The Contractor must. ensure any |nd|v1duals |nvolved in dellvermg services

) through thls Agreement contract sign an attestation .agreeing to access, view,
“store; ‘and disctiss Confi dentlal Data in accordance with federal and state laws

and regulatlons and the Department's 'Information Security Requiremerits .
Exhibit. The *Contractor must ensureé said irdividuals have a jusfifiable
business need to access:.confidential data. The Contractor must provnde
attestations upontDepartment request :

‘anacy Impact Assessment _ﬁ,
REAY

Upon request the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conductlng ) anacy Impact © Assessment = (PIA) _of its

- system(s)lappllcatlon(s)lweb portal(s)/websﬂe(s) or Department'
"+ system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)website(s) hosted by the Contractor, if
- Personally-ldentifiable Information (Pl1) is collected, used, accessed, shared,

or-stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access: to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to- aIIow the
Department to assess, at mlmmum the fo[lowmg

R 1744 iHow Pll is gathered and stored;

174.2.  Who will have access. to PII;

" 1.7.4.3. " How Pl will be used in the system

. 1:7.1:.4. . How individual consent will be achleved and revoked and

1.7.1.5. anacy practices

;
i

9/10/2024 ‘
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- EXHIBIT B

1.7.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are éithér
. significant process-changes or new technologies-impacting the collection,
processing or storage of PIL '

1.8. Department Owned Devib.es, Systems and Network-.Usagé

1.8.1. Contractor -End Users, defined in the Department’s Information Security
~ Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, authorized by
the Department's Information Security Office to use a Department issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, must: :

1.8.1.1.

1.8.1.2.

1.8.1.3.

1.8.1.4.

1.8:.1.5.

. 1.8.1.6.

1.8.1.7.

1.8.1.8.

1.8.1.9.

§8-2025-DBH-19:CONTI-01

Thrive Survivor Support Center

Sign and-abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required; T

Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department. business and agree that all other
use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to

. personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no

time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do 50;

Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;

Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by
the Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agréement executed by the Department;

Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department’s Information Security Office or designee; )

Not install-non-standard software on any Depértment equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office

or designee; .

- ‘Agree that email and other electronic communication messages

created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system

-are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be

used for business purposes only. Email is defined as “internal
email systems” or “Department-funded email systems.”

Agree. that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards; and/or guidelines; and '

Agree when utilizing the Department’s email system:

Initia!
B-20 . Contractor Initials L ((\’( .
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_EXHIBIT B

1.8.1.9.1. Toonlyusea .Departnient.‘email address éssigned to
them with a @ affiliate. DHHS.NH.Gov". '

| 1'.8.1.9._2.' : lnc‘lu'd‘e in th‘e‘signéture lines information identifying -

,1.8.1.1(5.

the End User as a non-Department workforce
~member; and ; e

1.8.1.9.3.  Ensure the  following confidentiality - notice s -
- . embedded undeméath the signature line: ' '
"~ CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This message may contain
.information that is privileged and - confidential ‘and is

intended"only for the use of the individual(s) to whom it is
) addr’é}éﬁsed,. If you Teceive this message in error, please
notify_the' sender immediately and delete this ‘electronic
:message and any attachments from your system. Thank

you for your cooperation.” . '

Contractor End Users with a Deﬁartmént issued email, access or |
potential access to Confidential Data, andfor a workspace in a
Department‘l:g_uilding/facility,:must:_*’f I

1.8.1.10.1. . ‘Complete the -Department's Annual. Information
. . Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting

. - Department Data'or. Confidential Data.

1.8.1.10.2. Sign' ‘the "Department's - Business Use and

- . Confidentiality ~Agreement and Asset Use

Agreemerit, and the NH DolT - Department wide

.- Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
.Agreement'and annually thereafter. ‘

_ 1.8.1.10.3: _ Only ,ac'c":‘es's‘:'tr'le'ffDeba'rtment’s_ ihtrahet.to view th,e

1.84.11,

1.8.1.12. "

Department's- Policies and Procedures and.
Information Security webpages.

Contractor agrees, if any End User.is found to be in violation of any
of the .above terms and -conditions, said End User may face
removal from . the. Agreement, . andfor criminal and/or civil
prosecution; if the act constitutés a violation of law.

Contractor agrees to nofify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to ‘any.upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users who possess Department credentials and/or badges or

-who have system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
- credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges resign or

are dismissed without advance notice, the Coittractor agrees to
notify the Department's information Security Office or'designeg

- immediately. -

§8.2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thiive Survivor Support Center *-

. ' D - CXl?lal
B-20- e ' Contractor Initils L— —
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. EXHIBIT B

1.8.2.. Workspace Requirement -

1.8.2.1.

If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine -
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users. :

1.9. Contract End-of-Life Transition Serwces

1.2.1. . General Requirements

1.9.1:1.

-1.9.1.2.

1.9.1.3.

1.9.1.4.

§8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Survivor Support Center

If applicable, upon.termination or expiration of the Agreement the

. parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth

secure transition of the Services from the Contractor to the
Department and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as
“Recipient”). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with -the Department and if applicable, the new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan - (DTP). The

‘Department shalt provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to-assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such

.Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of

records (electronic and hard copy); transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from

' theé hardware, software, network and telecommunications
-equipment and  internet-related  information  technology

infrastructure (“internal IT Systems”) of Contractor to the Internal

IT.Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance

to any third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection
with the Transition Services.

If a system, database, hardware, software, andior software

licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,

-and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said

Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document once transition of Department Datais
complete. :

The internal p[anntng of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if

- applicable the Recipient in'a timely manner. Any such Transition

Services shall b_e deemed to be Services for purposes of this

Agreement.
Initial
B-2.0 , ' Contractor Initials L[XY :
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EXHIBIT.B

19.1.5.

1.9.1.6.

Should". the data “ Transition .extend beyond the end..of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees-that the Information Security
Requirements, and if applicable, the Departments Business
Associate Agreenient terms and conditions -remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department

In the event where the Contractor has comingled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is hot’ feasible, the

: Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and

professional standards for retention requwements prior ‘to

destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department’s”
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhlblt

1 92 ‘Completion of Transition Serwces

1.9.2.1.

' 1.9.2.2. :

' Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days -
after theé product, resulting from the Service, is delivered to the -
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 busmess day
tterm‘the Contractor: notifies the Department of.an issue requmng
addltlonal time to complete said product

Once all partles agree the. data has been mlgrated the Contractor -
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department's Information Secunty Requirements Exhibit.

1.93. Dlsagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1.

In the event the Department is not satisfi ed with the resullts of the

-Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in

wntlng, ‘stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transmon process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be

" taken t6'resolve the disagteement or issue. If an agreement Is not

reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate

. actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits lncorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and dlsclose Protected Health Information in compliance
‘ with the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health Information (Privacy

Rule) (45 CFR

Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and

- Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached. Exhibit E,
DHHS Informatlon Secunty Requnrements which has been executed by the partles

2.2.. The Contractor
: accordance wnth

$5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Surviv'or,Stjpport Center

must manage ‘all confidential data related to this Agreement in
the terms of Exhlblt F, Business Associate Agreement

. . : - Inyllial ’
B20 - . - ' A_ Contractor tnltlals :L '
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EXHIBIT B

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through F, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference’ hereln

. . Tnitlal
' §8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 ' B2.0 - * Contractor Iritials L
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. EXHIBIT B

3. Additional Terms
31

3.2.

3.3. . |
- 3.3.1.. Al documents,’ notices, .press .releases, research reports and other

34

Impagts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes -

314 The.Contrédior,agrees that, to the extent futiire state or federal legislation

- or court orders may-have an impact on the Services described herein, the
~State .has, -the-right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
- requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith. - : g ' S SR

‘Federal Civil Rights LaWsi-‘*Combliég_nce: Cultqrailly and’ Linguistically Appropriate

'Programs and Services (CLAS)

3.2.1: . The Gontractor must submit, within ten (10) .days of the Agreement
' _ Effective Date,.a detailed description of the communication access and
- language assistance services to be provided to.ensure meaningful access
. to programs-and/or setvices to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

Credits and Cbgiyr'igﬁt?__ow%féﬁiﬁ

materials _prepared ‘during ‘or ‘resulting. from the petformance of the -
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, “The -
preparation of this (réport; document etc.) was finariced under a Contract
. with -the "State ‘of N&W Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
 Services, with funds provided”in part by the State of New.Hampshire
* and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the

U'nit_ed‘ States Department of Health and Human Services.”

© :33.2. " All materials. producéd or purchased under this Agreement must have

prior approval “from . the 'Dé’paﬂmenf?"b'éfo'ré printing, production,

distribution o use.”

3.3.3.  The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
o materials produced, including, but not limited to: '

3.3.3.1. B __"Brdchureé;

3.3.3.2. Resource directories;
.3.333.  Protocols or guidelines;

33.34. - Posters;and - -

3:3.35.. Reports

3.3.4.  The =Cpnfraf:tor must not: 'reproduce‘"any materials prodhced under this

o Agreement without prior ,vyr,ittgn approval from thie Department.
Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

. . ‘ ) o ‘ A . (ﬁeﬂ -
$S2025:DBH-19-CONTI01 - ° _ B20. - Contrafor Iritials L
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EXHIBIT B

3.4.1.

In the operation of any facilities for prcwdlng serwces the Contractor must

comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
. municipal authontles and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers

" pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
- with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services

at such facility. If any governmental license of permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or pérmit. In
connection with ‘the foregoing requirements, -the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency and
must be in conformance with Iocal building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulat[ons :

3.5, "Eligibility Determlnatlons Q

35.1.

3.5.2.

3.5.3.

" If the Contractor is permlitted to‘ determine the eligibility of individuals,

youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications. must be made in

acceordance with appllcable federal and state Iaws regulations, orders,

gu1dehnes policies and procedures.

Ehglb|l1ty determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or-
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

[n addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the

" Contracter must maintain a data file on each partlcipant of services

hereunder, which file must include all information nécessary to support an

~ eligibility determination and such other information as the Department.

3.5.4.

3.6.° | Records
3_.6.1.

55-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

§ Thrive Survivor Suppart Cénter

‘requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with-all forms and

documentation regardlng ellglblllty determinations that the Department
may request or require: :

The Contractor understands that all apphcants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The .Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an

: =appllcatlon form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be informed
of histher right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

The 'Ccntractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

3.6.1.1. Books, records; documents -and other electronic or physicél
data evidencing and reflecting- all costs and other expenses

' . o :Initial_
B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B .

, .rncurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract
.and all income received or collected by the Contractor. ’

'3.6.1.2: Al records must be maintained in accordance with-accountirig

13.62.

- procedures'and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect
all such costs and expenses, and which-are acceptable to the . -

. Department,” and to include,- without limitation, all iedgers,

. books, . records and onglnal evidence :of costs such as
purchase+requisitions and .orders, vouchers, requisitions’ for-
materials, inventories, valuations of i in-kind_contributions, labor .

' tlme cards payrolls and other records requested or requ1red by
: ' the Départment. : ; :
3.6.1.3. - Statistical,-enroliment, attendance or visit records for each :
- reclplent of servigces, which records. must lnclude all records of
._‘appllcatlon and _eligibility (mcludlng all forms required to
‘determine eligibility for ‘each stich rectprent) records  regarding

“the -provision of services_and all invoices submltted to the

-‘Department to obtaln payment for such services: ™ :

- Period of Record Retentlon The Contractor must ensure aII records

‘ongmals or coples made by mlcrofllmxng, photocopymg, or other srmliar

the Contract Completlon Date and receipt of- f rial” payment by the

o Contractor uniess records are othenmse required to be maintained for a

363,

penod in .excess of the five (5) year penod accordlng to state or federal _
law or regulatton : .

. During the term of this Agreement and the penod for retentlon hereunder

~ the Department the United States Department of Health and Human
-Services, and any of their designated representatlves must have access

- 3.6.4.

§5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01:

“Thrive Survivor Support Center

" o all reports and records maintained pursuant . to-this’ Agreement for
. purposes of audit, examlnatlon excerpts and transcnpts

f,. upon review of the Flnal Expenditure Report, ‘the Department must

disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the

QDepartment retains the right, at its discretion, to ‘deduct the amount of

such expenses as ‘are disallowed or to recover such sums from the
Contractor. :

- ) ) Initiat ’
B'Z‘.O . e S . Contractor [nitia[s‘; LJXY i
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- 'New Hampshire.Debé:&meﬁt!,of Health and H__uﬁman Services -
Continuum-of Care - TSSC ' o

. EXHIBITC

- . Payment '__'I'e'rr-n'"s

1. This Agreement is funded by: o _ .
1.1.  100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
: Assistance and. Rapid, Transition to Housing:Act (HEARTH Act),” Subtitle A-
. Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on March 28, 2023, by the
- .US Dept of :-Housing and Urban Development, Continuum .of Care Program,
+ Agsistance Listing Number14:267, FAIN NH0165D1T002300. :

2. .For the purposés of this;:Ag;re“érﬁ_ent the Department ha:s identified:’ _
21, The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.
’ ,2.2‘.. " The Agreement as NON-R&D‘, in aécorqahc‘e with 2 CFI'\/’“§200.332.

3. Paynient shall be on a cost téimburéemept,‘bé:éis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfiliment.of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items,'a's.

. .specified in Exhibits C-1; Budget through Exhibit C-6, Budget, . o
4. The Contractof must'submitan invoice to the Department no latér than the 15th working
. day of the month following the month in which the services were provided. Invoices must -
+ identify match funds-and sources expended during the billing period and:must be bacaked
up with source documentation for'matching funds. The Contractor.must ensure -each
' -invoice'in_clud‘es:_ _ o : I . .
~4.1. " The Contractor's'Vendor Number issued upon registering with New Hampshire =
.- Department of Administrative Services; . . ” S o
4.2, 'Supﬁortive Services Ma;.iter'Spreadsheet; Forms list #5; -
-43. Any new rental calculations or changes in rental calculations; and .~

44. .‘For Jeasing:'and«_ rental as‘s’ista'nce‘ projects; the Rental or Léa,__sing 'Assistance_
. spreadsheet, Forms list #.4_. : T ' -

2

45. ls“completed, dated ‘and returned to the Department with the supportind
d0¢umentatiqn for allowable expenses to initiate payment. e

'4.6. Is assigned an electronic signatiire, includés-supporting documentation, and is
~ emailed to'.tj“bUéinqsupportsinvoibes@dhh"s._nh._qov__or mailed to:
. NH DHHS | o |
Bureau of Homeless Services
-+ 129 Pleasant Street '
. Concord, NH 03301

5. .The Departrﬁent__shal] make payinents to the Contractor within 45 days of r,écelir)tm of each
- " invoice and supporting-documentation for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval
of the submitted invoice. B T B L

6. The final invoice éhd‘s'upporﬁhg documentation for authorized expenééé shall be due to

the'Department no later than 40 days after the contract completion date specified in Form
-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, Completion Date. '

- . . p—lnitial |
 -§5-2025-DBH-19:.CONTI-01 : cio0 . . . Contractor Initials :-—
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EXHIBIT C

YA _'thwnthstandlng Paragraph 17 of the- General Prov1srons Form P- 37 changes limited to
: - adjusting:amounts within'the’ price llmltatlon and adjusting. encumbrances between State
.- FiscalYears and budget.class lines-through the Budget Qffice may be made by written _
. agreement of both parties, without -obtaining approval of the Governor and Executlve

; Councrl if needed and Justlt" ied. :

8. . ,Audrts
81

-—

The Contractor must email an annual audlt to hhs act@dhhs nh qov |f any of the l
followrng condltlons exist: ' .

8 1. 1 . Condltlon A - The Contractor expended $750 000 or maore, in federal

8.2.

8.3.

§5-2025-DBH-19-CONTIO1 .. - - c20 . " Contractor Initialis™

Thrive Survivor Support Ceriter ‘“ " . Page2of15

s “funds, recéived ds a. subrecrplent pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, durlng the .
- ;most recently completed fiscal year. -

S

- Condltlon B . The Contractor is subject to audlt pursuant fo the’

7 requrrements of NH RSA 7:28, |li-b.

" '8.1.3. * ‘Condition C = The Contractor is a publlc company and requrred by

Security and Exchange Commlssmn (SEC) regulatlons to submlt an
“annual fmanclal audlt ! :

;’:8:1-4-i -‘Condltron D The contractor expends less- than $750 000 in federal

‘_f_ "'-funds dunng the flscal . year, s exempt -from Federai Monltorlng.
Requrrements except as noted in 2 CFR 200. 503 but records must be
)avallable for review, or audit, by appropnate officials of-the Federal

© agency, pass, through entlty, and Government Accountability . Office - .

' (GAO) Federal awards expended as a reclp|ent or a subrecipient are
' subject to audlt under thls part. The payments recelved for goods or.
- services prowded as a contractor are not Federal awards Sectlon §

200. 331 sets forth the, consrderatlons in determlnlng whether payments . -

o COﬂStItUte a Federal award or a payment for goods or: serwces prowded
: asa contractor G e B

If Condltlon A exists, the Contractor must submlt an annual Slngle Audit performed -
by an mdependent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh, .gov
within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted .in
accordance with the' requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. of the Uniform
Administrative Requrrements Cost PnnC!ples and Audtt Requirements for Federal

. awards

_8__.2.1. . The Contractor must submlt a copy of any Slngle Audit fi findings and any
- assomated corrective -action plans. ‘The Contractor must submlt:
quarterly progress reports on the status of. |mp|ementat|on of the _
corrective action plan '

If Condltlon B. or Condltton C exrsts the Contractor must submlt an annual fi nanclal

audit performed by an 1ndependent CPA within 120 days after the close of the

Contractor s fi scal year. . -

9/10/2 024
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. Continuum of Care - TSSC -

EXHIBIT C -

8:4.

' 85.

In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is

understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable
- for any. state’or federal audit exceptions and shall return fo the Department all
. payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which

have been disallowed because of such an exception.

If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the
Contractor shall submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the
Department, utilizing the guidelines set forth by the Comptroller Generat of the .
United States in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions,” within 120 days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal

+year, conducted in accordance with the requiréments of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart

F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

9.= Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review by .the State

9.1,

9.2,

9.3.

 §8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01
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Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term.“Project Costs” means. all

- expenses directly or.indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the

Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment, in accordance with Public Law 102-550, as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in-2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. All subcontractors shall
meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

Gontinuum of Care funds may be used to pay for.eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components:
permanent housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in

. some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under the
- applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,

and Pernmanent Housing-Rapid ReHousing’ component project .. Administrative

- costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to the restrictions
- on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24 CFR

578.87(c). .

Match Funds: ‘

9.3.1.  The Contractor shall proyi_dé sufficient matching funds, as reqhired by
-HUD regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73. -

9.3.2.  Match funds shall be documented with each payment requesf.

9.33. The Contréétor shall match all grant funds except for leasing fund.s, with
. no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions

from other sotitces. . _ _

9.3.4. The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash Match, or in-Kind Match, for

the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
- The Contragtor shall: : :

Contl:aclor Initfals
' t 9/10/2024
e .
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. 9.35.

. 9354,

. 9.36.

. 9.3.7.

- 9341,

The Contractor must substantiate’ the, cash match.in a -

-commitment letter, and then. must be tracked through the-
, ﬁContractors financial statements, general Iedgers and.

other records that reflect yearly fmanc:a[ status to show that
the cash was spent on eligible program expenses W|th1n the

: grant term.

The cash match written commitment must be documented on the

' commlttlng agencys letterhead and miust be signed and.dated by an
- authorized representative of the-agency providing the cash match. The -

documentation, ‘at a minimum, must mclude the following:

9351

9.3.5.2."
9.355.3.

' ;Amount of cash to be prov:ded for the pro;ect

Specmc date the cash will' be. avallable to the pro;ect

"Grant and fi scal year to which’ the cash match WI|| be
contrlbuted :

Allowab[e actlwtles to ‘be funded by the cash match

| "‘Documentatton of expended match must [nclude
9.35.4.1: 3 LAgreement for cash match .
9.35.4.2. ;. Cashmatch trackmg which is done according *

. fo general accounting prlnclples in. the
L= :_general ledger.’ :

9.3.5.4.3. ‘Source’ documentatlon that cash mafch is

. -spent on eligible - activities under CoC
Program interim rule.

. The Contractor must” maintain- records of-the source and use- of
‘acontnbuttons made to satlsfy the match requwement in24 CF R 578.73. -,

If the Contractor utilizes Iri-Kind Match the Contractor must ensure the

© 9.3.7.2.7

58 2025 DBH 19 CONTI-01 e

Thrive SurvworSupport Cenler co

followmg requirements are rhet:
-9:3.7.1.

The. in-kind property, eqmpment or goods must be
substantiated in a commitment letter and must be-tracked

" by the subreclprent agency to demonstrate that these.items

were” delivéred. to the prOJect andlor to its parhmpants

- during the grant term,

'ertten commltments for in-kind property, equment or
"goods must be .documented on the commlttlng agency's
. letterhead and must be signed and dated by an -authorized
‘representative of the agency providing the in-kind match.
. . The documentation, .at- a minimum, must lnclude the
. ,'.followmg :

Initial ~

"Qfﬁﬂ’t
c20 o o . Contractor Inifial§ * i

9/ 10/ 2024
Date

,9,3.?'.2,1.' Descnptlon and value of the donated

property, equment or good

* Page 40of 15 -
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. 83722 Spemﬁc date the property, equipment, or

goods wil be made available to the project;

9.3.7.2.3.  Grant and fiscal year to which the property,
equipment, or-goods will be contributed; and

' 9.3.7.2.4: Method used to determine the value of the

property, equipment, or goods’

9.3.8. In-Kmd Serwces must be substantiated in a Memorandum of
Understandlng (MOU), and then must be tracked by the recipient or
subrecipient to show that the services were delivered to program
i partlmpants durlng the grant term. Any services or benefits committed to
a progfam participant rather than the recipient or subrecrp[ent through

an MOU are generally 1nel:g|ble to be counted as match.

1 9.3.8.1.

9.3.8.2.

Written commitments of in-kind serwces during the
application, must be initially documented on the committing
agency's. letterhead. The document must be signed and
dated by an authorized representative of the agency

prowdmg the rn-kmd servrces "

An " MoOU must be in place between the

recipient/subrecipient and service provider by the time of .
grant execution and must include detail of the in-kind
services, their value, and the calculation method to be used

in determlnlng their value. Any services provided prior to the

. execution of the MOU cannot be counted towards match.

9.3.9, ., Each MOU must:

9.3.9.1.

9.3.9.2.
9.3.9.3.

_ 9.3.9.4.
9.3.9.5.

9.3.9.6.

-Establlsh the uncondltlonal commitment to provide the

sefvices, provided that the project is selected for funding by .
the CoC and HUD - .

'Spec;lfy the services to be provided to the project.
List the profession of the person who will provide the.

services. 7
Include the hourly cost of the services.
List the grant and fiscal year to which the m-kmd match will

o be contnbuted

Detall the system to be used.to document the actual quantity
and value of the services prowded to program ‘participants

. during the grant term.

9.3.10.  During the grant term, the actual in-kind services prowded to participants
must be documented. The documentatlon must include the following:

19.3.10.1.

. §5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Surtri\{or Support Center

Quantity of services provided.

(4

c-2.0 Cantractor Initials ’
9/10/2024

Page 5 of 15 . Date
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9.3.11.

9.73.10.2:. Value of the services.
‘9 3 1() 3. Date(s) on Whrch the | servrces were provrded

Subrecrplents must request information from third-party service |
providers on in-kind service match activity at least annually and are
responsible for venfyrng that the match is eligible and related to program :
partrcrpants served in the operatmg year. :

9.4. Payment of Prolect Gosts: -

9.4.1.

- The State agrees to provide payment ona cost relmbursement basis for

actual ehgrbte expenditures incurred in the fulfiliment of this agreement’

- and shall be: in accordance ‘with’ the .approved line items as specified in
the applrcable "Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the

942,

provisions of Public Law 102550 and other apphcable regulations, subject

. tothe avarlablllty of sufﬁment funds _
_The Contractor shall only be relmbursed for those costs desrgnated as

eligible and allowable costs as stated in these Payment Termis. The

- ‘Contractor must-have written approval from theAState priof to billing for
-any other expenses. | . . _

9.5, - Revrew of. the State, Drsallowance of Costs '

s 9.5.1.

At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Anriual Performance Report Termination Report-or Audited Financial
Report, the. State may review gll Project Costs incurred by the Contractor

and all payments made to date .

952

9.5.3.

0.54.

10 Expense Ellgiblllty :

$5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

- Thrive-Survivor Support Center

Upon such review, the State shall dlSEl”OW any items of expenses that are
not determined fo be a[lowable or are determined to be in excess of actual
expend|tures and. shall, by written notice specifying the drsallowed-

: expendltures mformlng the Contractor of any such drsallowance

If the State disallows costs for whlch payment has not yet been made it

" shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor
' pursuant to this Agreement are subject to recapture

'NotWIthstandrng anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor.agrees

that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in.
the event of noh-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services,
products, requrred report: submissions, as detailed in this agreement, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements, have not been satisfactorily completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

. A : ’ . i . . Initial
- c20 Contractor Iritials :-*—" ‘

9/10/2024 -
Page 6 of 15 ate /10/ '
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- 10.1. 'E’;ased on the cohtlnued recelpt/aVa:Iablltty of tederal funds, ttle Contractor shall
utilize Continuum of Care Program funds, as specified in these Payment Terms,
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

10.2. Operating Expenses: -

10.2.1.

Eligible operating expenses include:
10.2.1.1.  Maintenance and repair of housing.
10.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

10.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major
systems of the housing (provided that the payments must be
based on the.useful life of the system and expected
replacement cost).

10.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where.more than fifty (50)

10.2.2.

percent of the units or area is paid for with grant funds.
10.2.1L.5. Utilities, in'c]tJding electricity, gas and water.
10.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.
Ineligible costs include:
10.2.2.1. Rental assistarice and operating costs in the same project

10.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency she[ter and supportive service-
only facilities.

10.2.2.3. Maintenancé and repalr of housmg where the costs of
maintaining and repalrmg the housing are mcluded in the
lease.

10.2.2.4. 'Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as ellg|ble below is not
an “eligible cost of providing supportive services using
- Continuum of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of
~obtaining professional licensure or certifications needed to

provide supportive services are not eligible costs.

10.3. Supportive Services

103.1.

- 10.3.2.

10.3.3.

§8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Survivor Support Center

Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 578.53, and are available fo individuals actively participating in -
the permanent housing program

Spe(;lal populatlons All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants who are unaccompanled homeless youth; pérsons
Ilvmg with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestlo violence, dating violénce,
sexual assault, or stalking.

Ehglble costs shall include:
10.3.3.1. Annua! assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the

assessment required by 578.53(a) (2). E@iﬁﬂ/\

c-2.0 . Contractor Initials

9/10/2024
Page 7 of 15 ate /10/
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EXHIBIT C

10.3.3.2.°

10333,

“40.3.35.

- .10.3.3.9.

10.3.3.6.

»Assmtance wrth moving costs. Reasonable one-tlme movmg
- -costs-are ellglble and include truck rental and hiring a moving

company ) .
Case management The .costs of assessmg, arranglng, ’

,coordlnatlng, and monltonng the delrvery of individualized

" services to meet thé needs of the program participant(s). are -

10.3.3.4.

-eligible costs

Child Care. The costs of establlshlng and operatlng ch:ld care,

. and provrdlng ‘child-care vouchers for children from families

e)(perlencmg homelessness including prowdlng meals and

- snacks, and ‘comprehensive and coordinated developmenta]
.. activities are: elighle: - :

Education Serwces The costs of improving knowledge and
basrc educatlonal sk|lls are ellglble

Employment aSS|stance and job . training. The costs of

: establlshmg and operatmg employment assistance and job -

‘tramlng programs are 'eligible, including "classroom, online

andlor computer instruction, on-the-Job instruction, serwces‘-‘

that asmst lndlwduals in’, . securing employment, acquiring ‘

By Iearnlng skills, and/or |ncreasmg earnlng potential. The cost of

providing - reasonable stipends 16 “program participants in
employment assrstance and jOb training programs is also an

B ellg|ble cost. . - :

10.3.3.7.

10.3:3.8. .

Food The cost of prowdlng meals or grocenes to program
part|c|pants is eligible. .

Housrng search and counsellng services. Costs of aSSIstung,,

- eligible \programparticipants to locate obtam -and retaln

-

1o..3.3.1o

suitable housmg are eligible.

Legal services. Elrglble costs are the fees charged by licensed
“aftorneys:and by. person(s) under, the. superwsmn of licensed
attorneys, for- advice and representation in matters that

interfere with homeless deIduaI or family's ability to obtam
and retaln housing. :

Llfe ' Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life
‘management skills that may never have been learned or have |

.. been lost during course of physmal or mental |Ilness domestic
y VIolence _substance abuse, and homelessness are ellglble
. These services must be necessary to assist the program

. ' . R ’ EN
§5:2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 * "~

Thrive Survi\}or,"Support Center .

participant . to function lndependently in the community.

Component life skills training are the budgeting of resources

and money :management,+household management, conflict
management, shopplng for food and other. needed items,
nutrltlon the usé of publlc transportatlon and %BsnMramlng

C-20 . ' e Contractor_lmtlals

9/10 2024
Page 80f15 ___..__/ /
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.-=1‘-0=_ 3.3.11.. M_eﬁtal -H‘!eéllth ,Ser‘vi'ceg;. Eligiblé f_'coSté‘ are_fhe -direcf outpati.e'nt
© ' . .treatment of mental health conditions that are provided by .

licensed - professicnals. . Component “services are  crisis
 interventions;” counseling; individual, family, or ‘group therapy |
sessions; . the prescription ‘of psychotropic ‘medications .or
-explanations about the use and-management of medications;
~and combinations “of therapeutic approaches to address
‘multiple problems. - - - e R

,1“0.3.'3.12”. Outpatient heal,t_h*{sérvibes'. Eligible costs are the direct

outpatient treatment of medical conditions when provided by
licensed medical professionals. e

1 0.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engége, persons

. for the "purpose of providing immediate ‘support and
intervention, .as -well as identifying  *potential program. )
‘participants; are eligible. ‘ -

. 10.i3:3.1 4. Substance abuse treatment. services. The. costs of program -

Participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group -
‘and individual ‘counseling, and drug testing are eligible. -
Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol .
treatment are ineligible. '

10.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

10.3.3.”1-6. U't_'i‘[it‘y. Dk;ep_os'its. This form of ‘a-ssistance consists of paying for .
utility deposits. Utility deposits must be- one-time, paid directly
to’ utility companies. a R

*10.3.3.17. Direct provision of services. If a service, described as eligible

1035,

in these:Payment Terms, is being directly delivered by the
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services also
" include the following: S S
- 10.3.3.17.1. The costs of labor or supplies, and materials -
T . incurred by the recipienf‘_orsubrecipie‘nt in directly -
- providing* supportive  services ‘to: program
. participants.

10.3.3.17.2. Th"e"salér_y‘ar_l'd Benefit'packages‘bof t"he‘relcipient -
S and subrecipient staff who directly deliver. the
services. ao L :

i

Grant fur}ds'_"r_h.ay_be used for rental assistance for 'Indi\?iduals, youth, and
families experiencing homelessness. SR

Rental. assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or living in a housing unit receiving

. rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal, State, or

' §5-2025-DBH-19-CONTH01

_ Thrive Survivor Supportt Center

local sources. .

’ - lnﬂial‘
R U .
. c20 Contractor Initials” =

' L ) © 9/10/2024
Page 9 of 15 ) ) +Date _.. =
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S 2, _ 10 3 6 Rental as5|stance shall be admlnlstered in accordance wrth the pohmes .':
Sy 00 and. procedures established by -the Contmuum as set forth in 24 CFR
S ‘ 7578 T(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578 51. and may be: -

'10 3. 6. 1, Short term up to 3 months of rent
o T 6.2 Medlum term for324 months or
R SR :10.3.6.3. ,Long term for longer than 24 months

L 1 0. 3 7 Grant funds may be used for securlty deposrts inan amount not to exceed
'2 months of rent EO .

‘payment of .the ;Iast month ] rent may be prov:ded to the
addltlon to the securlty deposﬂ and payment of flI‘St month s

1039 Rental assustance =wril only be provnded for a unit |f the rent i$ reasonable .
L ast determmed by the ‘Contréctor; in ‘felation to rents: being charged for - -
' ‘_‘t,'.comparable unassisted units; takmg info accountthe location, size, type,

quality,” amenltles facmtles and management and malntenance of each . .-
. unlt . .

Jpant Forll_eas gi funds only Property damages may. be'.
ufunds paid 1 ] andiord-from security deposrts

10 3 11; Housmg shall be in compllance WIth aII State and Iocal housmg codes o
- licensing’ reqwrements the. Lead Based Pamt Pousonlng Preventlon Act,

;and any other requ1rements of the jurlsdtctlon in which the housmg is .. .

‘ . "".-3'~.Iocated regardlng the - condltlon of the structure and operatlon of the
P ,,housmg or services..: . - & :

A 10312 The Contractor shaII provrde one’ of the followmg types of rental
aSSIstance ~.Tenant:based,- PrOJect based, :or Sponsor—based rental ‘
L as3|stance as descnbed by HUD in 24 CFR 578:561. -

10. 3] 1 2 1 Tenant-based rental aSSIStance is réntal aSS|stance in WhICh
W S program partfmpants choose housing of an appropnate size in
~+“  which'to réside; When' necessary to facllltate the coordination
© ofs support[ve ‘services, _recipierits and . subrecnplents may
o reqwre program part|C|pants to'live ina specific areafor their. *

o first year andiin a specific area for the remainder of their period
- of partlclpatlon Short and riedium term rental assnstance._'
" prowded under the Rapld Re-Housing program component
= must be teniant based renta] assistance., ‘

10. 3 12 2. 8 hnsor;based rental asmstance is provided through contracts o
s between the re0|p|ent and sponsor organlza W%sponsor’_ "
C'?.O‘- o B '. .- Contractorlnltlats -.«:-‘: AT :
T »  Dale 9/10/2024

! Page100f15 -
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‘EXHIBIT (3

' may be a pnvate nonproflt orgamzatlon or a. communlty

o mental -“health - agency established as a -public  nonprofit

'1oénza

-organization. Program. participants -must reside in housmg

owned or Ieased by the sponsor.

Pro;ect—based rental assistance is provided through a contract :
with the-ownér of .an existing structure, ‘where the owner

- agrees to lease the subsidized units to program participants.

10,3124,

: Program parﬂc;pants will not retain rental assrstance if they .
- move: : _

For prolect based sponsor—based or tenant-based rental

;a55|stance program part[clpants must.- enter into a- lease

agreement for a term of at least one year, which is termtnablef

- for'cause. The leases must be automatlcally renewable upon

10 4 Admlnlstratlve Costs

: explratlon for terms that are a minimum of one month long,

except on pnor notice by elther party

10 4, 1 Elrglble admmrstratlve costs lnclude

, 10411, -

The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part; for
the payment of project administrative costs related to the

planning and-execution of Continuum of Care activities. This .~

" does not include staff and overhead costs directly related to
- carrying out activities ellglble under 24 CFR 578.43 through -

10.4.1.2.

* . §8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

Thrive Survivor Support Center

.578.57, because those costs are elrglble as part of those
'- .actlwtles -

General management over&ght "and coordination. ‘Costs of
overall program management, coordination, monitoring and 3

-evaluation. These costs include; -but are not limited to,
. necessary expendltures for the: followmg

10.4.1.2.1. Salaries, "'wages, and.-related costs. of the "
oL . Contractor’s staff,. or. other staff engaged in
. program admmlstratlon

10.4.1.2.2, In,charglng costs to this category, the Contractor
- rmay include the entire salary, wages, and related
costs allocable to:the program of each person

“whose primary responsibilities with-regard to the

. program . “involve  program -administration

. - . assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,

: wages and related costs of ‘each person whose

jobs-7 includes  -any program administration’
assignments.The Contractor may only use one of
these methodsfor each fiscal year grant. Program
admlnrstratlon assrgnments include the following:

. C2.0 5 ~* Contractor Initials =" L

‘ ' 9 10 2024
Page 110of15 - - ate / /
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$8:2026-DBH-19-CONTI-01

. Thrive Survivor Support Center .

10.4.1.2.2.1.

104.12.2.2.

10.4.1.2.2.3.

10.4.12.2.4.
10.4.1.2.2.5.
to{jézs.
*"tcimZZK
1&{&22&

10.4.1.2.2.9.

Prepanng program budgets and-
schedules, and  amendments 'to

thosé budgets and schedules.

Developing systems' for assuring
compliance with - program

" requirements.

Developing . interagency
agreements and agreements with
subrecipient  and Contractors to
carry out program activities. -

Monitoring program activities for
progress and . compliance- wmth

_program requn‘ements

Preparing reports and | other
documents relatéd to the program

- for submlssmn to HUD

Coordmatlng the solutlon of audit

'and monttorlng flnd[ngs

Preparlng reports and other
documents directly - related to the’
program submlssmn to HUD.

Evaluating .program results against _
stated objectwes

Managmg or superwsmg persens -

. whose" primary responsibilities are

‘among those program

;" “-administration  assignments, - as

Jisted immediately abové.

i 10.4.1.2.2.10 -Travel costs incurred for official -

business in carrymg out the
program. _

10.4.1 .2.2.11 Administrative services performed
: ,under third party - contracts or

agreements including .. . such
services as general legal services,'
accounting - services, and audit
services.

'10.4.1.2.2.12 Other costs for goods and -

- c20

Page 12 of 15

services required for administration
-of the program, lncludlng such
goods and ‘services—agt rental or

e

J"C‘ontractor_lnitials T
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10.5. Leasing:

EXHIBIT C

_purchase of equipment, insurance,
utilities, office supplies, and rental
and maintenance, but not purchase,
of office space.

10.4.1.2.2.13. Training on Continuum of Care
requirements. Costs of providing
training on Confinuum of Care
requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care
trainings. '

10.4.1.2.2.14. Environmental review. Costs of
carrying out the environmental
review responsibilities under 24
CFR 578.31.

10.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions ihe_r‘eof, grant
funds may-be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a
structure ,or structures, or -portions thereof, to provide housing or

10.5.2.

| $5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01

" Thrive Survivor Support Cenler

supportive

services to homeless persons for up.to three (3) years. Leasing '

funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the

contractor,

their parent organization, any other related organization(s), or

organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership

-owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

Réqqiremerits:

10.5.2.1.

-'Leasing struc:iures. When grants are used to pay’-rent'for all or
part -of a structure or structures, the -rent paid must be
reasonable in relation to rents being charged in the area for

. comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed

10522,

rents currently being charged by the: same owner for

comparable unassisted space.

Leasing individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay -
- rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable .
“in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking

" Into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
< facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may

10.5.2.3.

not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units,
and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determiried fair market
rents. ' ' '

Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included.in the rér’ft,

these utilities may be paid from leasing funds, If utilities are not~

provided by the landlord, these utility costs are operatifiy costs;

except for supportive service fadcilities. If the s Me is being
| ,l Mmoo

C-2.0 Contractor Initials

- S 9/10/2024
_ Page130f15 . Date.L.
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‘New Hampshlre Department _of Health and Human Services

Contmuum of Care - TSSC

EXHIBIT C

ok o

L 10525,
. 10.5.2.6.

10.52.7,

used asa. supportwe serwce facmty, then these utll[ty costs are

" .:asupportive service cost

Securlty deposns and. first and last months rent. The

- Contractor may use grant funds to pay security deposrts in an
amount riot {o exceed 2 months .of actual rent. An advance
,payment of last month’s rent may be prowded to the landlord -

in addltlon to securlty deposn and payment of the first month’s _

' rent

&

‘,Occupancy agreements and subleases Obcupancy

'agreements and subleases are requwed as specrfled in 24 -
CFR 578.77(a). :

Calculahon of occupancy charges and rent Occupancy

-charges and rent from program part|c|pants must be calculated

as provrded in 24 CFR 978.77.
Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from

. program participants are program income and may be usedas

10.5.2.8.
10.5.2.9.

10.5.2.10.
105211,
'1":0.5_.'2.12
‘10.__5.2_.13

10.5.2.14.

prov:ded under 24 CFR-578.97.
Transmon Refer to 24CFR 578. 49(b)(8)

Rent paid : may only reflect actual -costs and must be

reasonable in- comparison to rents charged in.the area for

similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness. :

must- be kept on file by the Contractor.

The portlon of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD- -
determlned fair market rents. :

The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly, funds .
may not be given directly to partrcrpants to pay leasing costs

Property damages may only be pald from-money paid to, the_
landlord for security deposits.

The Contraotor cannot lease a burldlng that it already owns to
itself. )

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing
codes, licensing - requirements, the Lead-Based . Paint
Poisoning Prevéntion Act, and any other requirements of the
jurisdiction - in which the housing is located “regarding the
condition of the, structure and operatlon of the housing or
services. :

10.6. The Contractor may charge program partrcrpants rent and utilities (heat;, hot water).
' N However, the amount -charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specifi ied -
- in HUD regulations -(24 CFR 578.77). Other servicés such as cable, air

: condltlon!ng telephone, Internet access, cleanlng parking, pool charges etc. are

SS 2025 DBH 19- CONTI 01

-t

Thnve Survnvor Support Center

at the partlclpant's optron - | (X'"?a' :

©C2.0 . Contractor lnlllals

. 9 10 2024
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'New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Continuum of Care - TSSC

| _EXHIBIT C

. _107. The Contractor shall have any staff cha rged in full or part to this contract, or

counted as match, complete -weékly or bi-weekly timesheets.

11. Contractor'Fihancial Management System )
11.1. Fiscal Cofitrol: The Contractor shall estabiish fiscal control and fund accounting”

. procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
.and any required nonfederal expenditures. ' This responsibility applies to funds

disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor. . . )
gement system that complies with. '

11.2.. The Contractor shall maintain a financial mana _
2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require. .
ﬁal
ss—.ﬁoés-ns&ﬁ@comn-m. o o .. ce20 © Contractor Initials C——- ‘

) Thrive Surv_ivor.SupportCenter - Page1bof1s .. . : D

9/10/2024
ate o e .
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:E*'{ibit-f?-*fBudget R TR
. L - - ~New Hampslnre Department of Health and Human . Serwces s §
N N : o Complete one budget iform for edqch budger penoa‘. L
. ... Contractor Name: pTHre : B ‘
- Budget:Request for:|; _
.*|Rental Agsistatice: -
-|Suppottive:Services, « -
- [Administration -
: Total l)n'ect Costs
= J\ . . .
ZTOTAL - \
- .
- R P CIE AT REU LA S BT S L L9Y5/2024
SS 2025-DBH 19—CONTI 01 -
Thrlve Surv:vor Support Center ‘ ‘

h N
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. ) Exhibit C-2, Budget
New Hampshire 'Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name:|’
Budget Request for:|[Bo
) Budget Period |77/

£

‘|Rental Ass1st'a“.n'cé

.|Supportive Services

Administration

Total Direct Costs

iz

TOTAL-

' §6-2025-DBH-19-CONTIL-01
Thrive, Survivor Support Center

9/5/2024
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Te U : e _ Exhibit C-3, Budget

New Hampshire Department-of Health and Human Services = - L ] e
Complere one; budrret form for each budget penod

, ‘ BﬁdgeiRecwest for:|DO
Budget Periodl;%@é’” ’_Q{ﬁfﬁ

: Rental Assmtance'
. Supportive Services .
. |Administration

Total Direct Costs
TOTAL
L
. _ . | |
. ._,:jj S . o e _ 9/5/2024

J $8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 -
l_Thrl've Survivar Support Center
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o E ‘ : Exhibit C-4, Budget _ :

New Hain'pshire Depaftment of Health and Human Séi'vices‘
Compiete one budget form for each budget period, B

p ter

- Contractor Name:
Budget Request for:
Budget Period}:

Rental Assistance . L
{Supportive Services . | -
(Administration
i|Total Direct Costs _

TOTAL

A
” : Inigal -
‘ . B S : 9/5/2024
$8-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 - ) C
. Thrive Survivor Support Center: , , L , .
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T o Exhibit C-5, Budget: Lo '

New Hampslure Department of: Health and Human Servnces\ — L v
Complete one budoet form for each budoe - : L

Crohtractror_}Nahe' 5 Hitg)
Budget Request for:|D
- » Budget Period | 7£1/28-

“[Rental ‘Adsistance
-|Supportive Services .
TAdministration L
"{Total:Direct Costs

- [TOTAL

'
-
. “
~ . . .
f
R LI
i \
.« s - . aof
. -
- + 2 .
. . ~ s M -
- . N - %,
7 i E u
. . r . R
” . x i
’ . 1%] & i
B s s
. B E
- i B
) - - i -
|
PR - N . - .
. . L - -
! !
- - v A =
1 - a Jb ¢ b =
. ~ .
“ g b
P . . * . .
k ¥
,,,,,, v - i - .
N .
- - 9/5/2024 . :
ki L
B

§5-2025-DBH- 19-CONTI-01
Thnve Survivor Support Center



Docusign Envelope ID: 4FD34B97-8DA0-4732-A17D-8ABDID4ESCTT . , :
’ Exhibit C-6, Budget:

New Ha’mpshire Department of Health and Human Services
Camplete one budget form for each budget penod

Rental Ass1stance
. |Supportive Services
‘| Administration
1Total Direct Costs

TOTAL

9/5/2024.

$5-2025-DBH-19-CONTI-01 ' o ' . : "
Thrive Survivor Support Center
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New Hampshlre Department of. Health and Human Ser\rlces
' ExhlbltD Federal Requlrements

SECTION A CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor |dent|f|ed in Sectlon 1. 3 of the General Provrs:ons agrees to comply with the prowswns

of Sections 5151-5160°0f the- Drug-Free Workplace Act-of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41

U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectrons
T 111 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fotlowmg Certification:

: ALTERNATIVE l- FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - GONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE CONTRACTORS

- This certlflcat|on is requ|red by the regulatrons |mplement1ng Seotrons 5151 5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41'U.5.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,

+ 1989 regulations were:amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages :
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors {and by inference, sub- contractors}, prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Sectlon 3017. 630(c) of the regulation-provides that
a‘contractor {and by inference, sub-contractors) that is-a_State may elect to make one certification to the .
Department in each federal fiscal year-in lieu of certificates for each. Agreement during the federal fiscal -

-year covered by the certlf cation. The certificate set otit below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed wheén the agency awards the Agreement ‘False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments suspension or termination of Agreements or .
government wrde suspensmn or.debarment. Contractors using this form should send itto: = -

Commrssmner o '
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-6505
1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to ‘provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publlshlng a statement notrfyrng employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled siibstance is prohibited in the Contractor's
_workplace and specifying the actrons that will be taken against employees for wolatron of-such
prohlbltlon L

12. Establrshlng an ongo:ng drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
-1.21. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;-
1.2.2. The Cont_ractor‘s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any availalole orug counseling, rehabilitatlon and employee assistance pr'ograms: and '

'1.2.4, The penalt:es that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse \nolatlons occurring
: ‘inthe: workplace

1.3 Maklng ita requwement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying thé employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of -
. employment under the Agreement, the employee will

1.4.1. ‘Abide by the terms of the statement and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in wrrtlng of his or her conviction for a violation of a cnmmal drim

statute occurrrng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sue{_ 4 M ;
. 'v1"'_6_£23 O Exhibit D h Contractors Initials ‘-—‘——-
B ¥ e Federal Reguirements . - - Date 97572024~ 572024

" Page’ 1 of 10
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New Hampshire Deparime_nt.of Health and Human Services
o - Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing; within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or.otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement; ] : : .

1.6. Taking one of the following ‘actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or ‘ . S

- 1.6,2.  Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,

law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7.Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free Workplace through implehentation
of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. : :

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
‘ in connection with the specific Agreement. - '

‘Place of Performance (street address, city, couhty, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [J if there are'workplaces on file that are not identified here.

vi 623 . ExhibitD - "~ . Contractor's Initials ;
< Federal Requirements . Date

Page 2 of 10
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New Hampsh|re Department of Health and Human Services
' Exh|blt D Federal Requrrements '

: SECTION#B CERTIFICATION REGARDlNG LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 4.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provrsnons
of Section 319 6f Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,

.and Byrd Antl-l.obbyrng Amendment (31 U.s.C. 1352) and further agrees to have the Contractor’ s
representatlve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prowsrons execute the followrng
Certlﬁcatron o o, :

us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
Us DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
i
Programs (mdrcate applrcable program covered)
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title 1V- D
. *Social Services Block Grant' Program under Title XX
*Medrcald Program under Title XIX- * : :
*Community Services Block Grant under Title V) .. . P
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title lV

© The under3|gned certtt“ ies, fo the best of his or hef knowledge and bel:ef that

1. No Federa[ approprrated funds have been pa|d or will be paid by oren behalf of the underS|gned to
©any person forinfluencing or- attemptrng to influence an officer or employée of any agency, a
. Member of Congress an officer'or employee of Congress,-or-an employee of a Member of
- Congress in confection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal _
amendnient, or. modlﬂcatlon of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperahve agreement (and by
»spectf c mentlon *sub- contractor) ..

20 0F any funds otherthan Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,.a Member, of Congress,
.an officer or employee of Congress, of an.employee.of a Member of Congress.in connection with -
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contracton), the
underS|gned shall complete and submit Standard Form'LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,
in accordance with its mstructlons see; https /lomb reportl:cr!201009 0348-022/doc!20388401 '
3. The under5|gned shall require that the language of thls cerllt" catlon be mcIuded in the award
.document for.sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, -and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperatlve agreements) and that all-sub- recrptents shall certlfy and d|sclose accordrngly
This certifi catlon IS a material representation of fact upon WhICh reliance was placed when thlS
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequ15|te for making or
_ entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the requned certification shall be subject toa cwrl penalty of not Iess than $10 000 and not more than
$100 000 for each such fa|Iure : ‘

e

. r;_n&g '
Coviels . . "Exhibit D - Contractor's Initials (S
L - Federal Requirements - Date ™
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New Hampshire Department of Health and ‘Humén Services
o 'Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

SECTION C: CERTIFIGATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESEONSIBILITY MATTERS . -

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Géneral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 1 2689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
_Debarment, Suspension, and. Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1 11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Cetification: : ’ : g

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION . o ‘
1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. .

2: The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall
subniit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ {(DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification.or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction. » ' RO

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification;, in addition to other remedies
avallable to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has became erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. - . : - ‘

5. The terms "covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
. transaction,” *participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See

https:llwm)w.govin_fo.govlappldetaille_F R-2004—title45;vol 1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this ‘Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered ’
= transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS., R

7. - The prospective primary participant further'agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension; Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covéred transactions. ‘ .

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participantina - .
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily éxcluded.
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A pafticipant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but.is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded partfes) .

https://www.ecfr.govlcurrentltitle-2_2/chapter-V/part-51 3. | r_ wnidial
i il - ——— M -
viezs - - - © ExhibitD Contractor’s Initials —
- Federal Requirements : Date :
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Serwces
Exhlblt D— Federal Requrrements

9. Nothlng contained.in the foregomg shall be construed torequire establlshment of a system of
records in ‘order to render-in good faith the certification required by lhlS clause. The knowledge and
informiation of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordlnary course of business deallngs ; .

10. Except for transactlons authonzed under paragraph 6 of these mstructlons 1f a partlclpant ina

* . covered transaction® knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transagtion, in
“addition to other remedies available to the Federal government DHHS may termmate thrs )
transactton for cause or default . ‘ . ‘

‘ PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ' ' ’
11, The prospectlve pnmary partlcrpant certlt" es to the best of |ts knowledge and bellef that |t and |ts
, .pnnmpals "
- 1117 “Are, not presently debarred suspended proposed for’ debarment declared rnelrglble or
' voluntanly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;:
11.2.  Havenot within a three-year period precedlng this proposal {Agreement) been convicted of
" - - orhad acivil judgment rendered against them for commission. of fraud or. a:criminal offense -
: o in connection with obtalnlng, attemptlng to obtain, or:perforrning a public (Federal, State or
e :,Iocal) transachon or a contract;under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
FEREA antitrust statuteg or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,: falsrflcatlon or
destructlon of récords, making false statements, or receiving- stolen property, :
“11.3.  Arenot: presently_ indigted for other\mse cnmlnally or: cnnlly charged by a governmental entity
M S ;‘"or_local) with commnssron of any. of the'offefises enumerated m ara
' "_"(I)(b) of this‘éértification; and”- .- -
11.4. Have not within a three-year period precedmg this appllcatlonlproposal had one or'inore
- public transact[ons (Federal State or local). termlnated for ¢ause or default G

12. Where the prospectrve prlmary partrmpant is unable to certtfy to any of the statements in thls :
certlt‘ catron such- prospectnre partlcnpant shaII attach an explananon to this proposal (contract)
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS AU o
‘ 13 By- S|gn|ng and submtttmg this, lower tier proposal (Agreement) the prospectlve Iower tler
partlmpant as defi ned in 45 CFR Part 76, certifles to the: best of its knowledge and. behef that it and
its principals: - T L e
© - 131, Arenot presently debarred suspended proposed far debarment declared mehglble or
voluntanly excluded from part|c1pat|on in this transachon by any federal department or.
agency. .
13.2. Where the prospettive lower tier participant is unable to cert|fy to any of the’ above such
prOSpectlve partlmpant shall attach an explanatlon to this proposal (Agreement)

14. The prospechve lower tier part|C|pant further agrees by submlttlng thls proposal (Agreement) that it
wrll include this clause entitled “Certifi cation Regarding Debarment, Suspenswn Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion 5 Lower Tier Covered Transactions,”.without modification in all lower tier covered
transactlons and in all sollcrtatlons for lower trer covered transachons o A

] VIBR23 el -y © ExhibitD L. Contractorslmtlals i
S PR + Féderal Requirements S Date97 572022‘
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New Hampshire Departme'ﬁt_ of Health and Human Services

ExhibitD — Federal Requirements

' SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

- The'Contrac':'tor identified in‘Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signatu‘re of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification: :

The _Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, wfth any applicable federa!
requirements, which may include but are not limited to: ’ ' '

1.

10.

11.

Uniform Administratfve_ Requirements, Cost Principles, andif-\udit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200).

The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act-of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which .
prohibits récipients of federal funding under this statute from diseriminating, either in employment
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national-
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan; o 7 "

The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts

-by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under

this statute are prohibited from-discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits,-on'the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Actincludes
Equal Employment Opportunity-Plan requirements; . s '

" The Givil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C: Section 2000d, which prohibits redipients of federal financial

assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity); _ N :

The'Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal
firancial assistance.from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or beneéfits, in any program or activity; T

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sectioris 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation; .

- The Education Amendments of ‘i'9?27‘(20 U.8.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits

discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assjsted education programs; "

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.8.C. Sections 6105-07), which prohibits discriniination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination; :

28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations ~ OJJDP Grant Programs}; 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making crit_éria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

28 C.F.R.pt. 38 (U.S. Deparimgri‘t of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations}, and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts. ’ ) . .

The Clean Air Act (42 U.8.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the
environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air.

Initial
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2. The Clean Water Act(33US. C. 1251 1387). whlch establishes the basic structure for- regulatmg
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the Unlted States and’ regulatmg quallty standards for
" surface waters ‘

13. Cl\nllan Agency Acqmsmon Council and the Defense Acqws:tron Regulatlons Councﬂ (Councﬂs) (41

" USsCh 1908) which establishes administrafive, contractual or lega remedles in instances where
cohtractors violate or breach contract terms, and prowde for such sanctlons and penaltles as
appropnate . : _

14, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U S.C. 3701—3708) WhICh establ:shes that a!l
contracts awarded by the non- Federa[ entlty in excess of $1 00,000 that 1nvolve the employment of -
mechantcs or laborérs must |nclude a proyision for compllance with 40 U.S. C 3702 and 3704 as
'supplemented by Department of- Labor regulatrons (29 CFR Pait 5). T

15. nghts to Inventions Made" Undera Contract or Agreement 37:CFR § 401. 2 (a) wh|ch estabhshes
‘the recipient-or subrecipient wishes to ‘enter into a contract with a'small busifess firm or nonproflt
organization regarding the substitution of parties; assignmerit or performance of experimental, -
developmental, or résearch work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipienit must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to lnventlons Made by Nonprofit
Organlzatlons and Small Business Firms.Under Government Grants; Contracts arid- Cooperatwe
-Agreements -and any. tmplementlng regu]atrons issued'by the awarding agency. -

The certificate-set out below is a matenal representation of fact upon which rellance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certlﬂcatlon shall be grounds for . . .
suspension of payments suspensmn or termination of Agreements or government wude suspensmn of .
debarment , . - ‘

In the eventa Federal or State court or-Federal or State administrative agency makes a fi ndmg of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

- against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding t6 the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Serv:ces Oﬁ" ice of the Ombudsman. :
The Contraétor identified in Section: 1.3 of the General Prowsmns agrees by srgnature of the

. Contractors‘representatlve as rdentif edin Secttons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prowsrons to execute :
the following certlflcatlon : . |

_ 1. By signing and submitting this Agreement the Contractor agrees to comply with the provusrons
|nd1cated above.

o . : Inigial
f Grm
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i

SECTION E; CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C- Environmental T__ob_ac(:o Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of

1994 (Act), requires that' smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased .
or contracted for by‘an entity arid used rotinely or fégularly for the'provision of health, day care, -
education, or library services to cﬁildl‘engunder‘the age of 18, if the services are funded by Fedéral

" programs either directly or through State or Jocal governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residénces, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities uséd for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatmenit. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law.may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliancé order on
the responsible entity. e T o ‘

. Thé__Contractor identified imS_ec_:tic'm 1.3 of the General F?fovisions agrees, by signature of the .
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
- the following certification; . - o .

1. By"signing and submfﬂihé‘this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make_:,relasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable:provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part G, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994, _ ‘ : s -,

FI?M
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'SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING AGCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT ( FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Fundlng Accountabllrty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensatlon and associated first-tier sub-grants-of $30,000.or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award .
equal to or over $30 000, the award is subject to the FFATA reportlng reqmrements as. of the date of
the award o .

In accordance w1th 2CFR Part 170 (Reportlng Subaward and Executwe Compensatlon Informatron)
the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information.for any
sub award or contract award subject to the FFATA reportrng requrrements

-1 Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding age.ncy

-4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants l_ _

o 1
5. Program source

6. Award _title descriptive of the purbose of the_fundt_ng action

7. Locationoftheentty - - - e N
5 P'_rinciple.:p.laceof;perforngance

9 Uniq.ue Entity ldentiﬁer (SAM'UEI; DUNS#)

10. Total compénsation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and .
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
* + Prime grant rec;plents must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days in which the award or award amendment is made

The Contractor identified i Sect:on 1.3 of the General Prowsmns agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further

.agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera!
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor, agrees to prov;de needed lnformation as outlined above to the NH
‘Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all appllcable prowswns of the Federal
.. Financial Accountablhty and Transparency Act. .

Inttial
vi623° v S Exhibit D Contractor’s [nitials L .
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FORM A

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisic;ns, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. :

1.
2,

: QBLMDHFUBHM7
The UE_I.T(SAM.gov) number for your entity is: .

In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements? : ' ' ' :

X N ¥Es

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your .

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 '

NO ‘ YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

' _ |Fthe answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

Name: _ ’ Amount;
" Name: _ Amount:
Name; A | Amount:
Name: - “Amount:
‘Name: - | ‘Amount:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: :

Contractor Name: Thrive Survivor support Center

DocuSigned by;

9/5/2024 : K}WM_O?’V@@_M’“{"" .

FFDEBERCSCH043

Date: o Name: J6557 Ca vaughn-Martin

Title:  pyecutive Director

v16/23 : . Exhibit D Confractor's Initials ;
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A.. Definitions

The following terms'maay bereflected and have the -described meaning in this document;

1.

“Breach” means-, the loss of control comprom|se unauthorized dlsclosure_
unauthorized acqwsmon unauthorized: access, :or any: smlar term referring to
situations where persons other.than authorlzed users and for an other than authorized

'.,purpose have access .or. potential .access to personally |dentlf|able information,
.. whether phyS|caI or electronic. With regard to Protected Health, lnformatlon Breach”

shall have the same. meaning as the term “Breach” in sectron 164.402 of Trtle 45,
Code of Federal Regulatlons ., . L. e

23

“Computer Securlty Incrdent” shall .have the same meanlng "Computer Security
Incident” in_section two (2) of NIST Publrcatron 800-61:Computer Seeurity Incident
Handlmg Guide, Natlonal Institute of. Standards and Technology, u S. Department of

. Commerce

V"Conf|dent|al Informatlon or “Confi dentlal Data’ means, aIl confidential information
~disclosed -by, one party to the other such.as all :medical,- health,~financial,.. public

‘asmstance beneflts and personal mformatlon including W|thout Jimitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records Protected Health lnformatlon and

) Personally ldentlt"able lnformatton P

i .‘

Cont" dentlal Informatlon also rncludes any and all mformatlon owned or managed by

' _the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health .and

Human Services:(DHHS)-or accessed in the course of performing cohtracted services
- of which*¢ollection, disclosure, protection; and-disposition is govérned by state or

i federal law or regula’uon This lnformatlon includes; but is not limited to Protected
" Health Information‘(PHI), ‘Personal Information (P}, ‘Personal Flnan0|al Information

(PFl), Federal Tax [nformation (FTI); Social Security Numbers (SSN) Payment Card
Industry (PCl) and or other sensrtlve and conﬂdentlal mformatron

"‘End Usef’ means any person or entrty (e.9., contractor contractors employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, efc.) that réceives DHHS
data or denvatwe data in accordance wrth the terms of this Contract

\

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portablhty and Accountablhty Act of 1996 and

© the regulatrons promulgated thereunder

“Inmdent” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied: secunty pollcy, ‘
which mcludes attempts (&ither failed or successful) to gain unauthorized accéssto a“
systemor its- -data, unwanted disruption or dénial of service, the unauthorized use of
“a Systém for the processing or storage of data; ‘and changes to system hardware,

firmware, or software characteristics without tie owner's knowledge lnstructlon or
consent Incndents mclude the loss of data through theft or dewce mlsplacement loss

) Initial :
‘Contractor Initials L—[X{ ‘
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of. physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction. ’ ‘ .

7. ';‘Open Wireless Network” means aﬁy network or gegm’enf of a network that is'not,
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the

State, to fransmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
- the transmission of unencrypted Pi, PFL, PHI or confidential DHHS data, '

© 8. "Personal Information” (or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
- . ortrace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mothers maiden

name, ete. : ' . : :

9. “Privacy Rulé" shall mean the'Standards for Privacy of Individually Identiﬁable Health
: Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
_ States Department of Health and Human Services. ‘

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the

~ definition of "Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

160.103. : C T ' o

11. “Security Rule” Shéll mean the Security Standards for the Protéction of Electronic

' Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. T s ) . :

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is

- not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information

‘unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and'is developed

or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute. :

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A Busiriess Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information,

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not

..use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation

of the Privacy and Security. Rule.
. a ' Initial .
Contractor Inilialsl [?X)/_
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2. -;The Contractor must not drsclose any Confidential Information i ln response to a request
for, disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc., -
_ without fi rst notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity. to consent or object to
) the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has-agreed to. be bound by additional
‘ restrlctlons over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI'
pursuant to the anacy and Securrty Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
addltlonal restnctlons and’ must not “disclose’ PHI in wolatlon “of such addltlonal
restrrctlons and must ablde by any addltronal securlty safeguards

3 4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS. Data or. derivative there from dlsclosed to an End .
User must-only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. )

5. The.Contractor agrees DHHS Data. cbtained under this Contract may not be used for .
- any other purposes that are- not indicated in this Contract. . . :

-6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authonzed representatlves of
- DHHS for the - purpose’ of mspectlng to confirm compllance with the terms of thls
Contract . . _ .

R
[

'..II. _METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Appllcatlon Encrypt:on If End User is transmlttlng DHHS data contalnlng Conf dent|a|
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evatuated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber secunty and that said: apphcatlons encryptron '
.capabltltles ensure secure transmlsswn via the 1nternet _

~2_.’ Computer Dlsks and Portable Storage Dewc:es End User may nat use computer disks
.o portable storage devxces such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmittlng DHHS
- data. L , .

3. Encrypted Emall End User may onty employ email to transmit’ Confldentlal Data |f email -
is no[ypted and being -sent-to. and being recelved by email’ addresses of persons K
authonzed fo recelve such mformatlon ; .

4, Encrypted Web Slte if End User is employing the'Web to transmit. Conﬂdent:a! Data, the
‘'secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
. data transmitted via a Web site. :

5. File Host:ng Services, also known as File Sharlng Sltes End User may not use flle hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Googte Cloud Storage to transmlt Conﬂdentlai Data,

6. ,Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmlt Confldentlal Data via cen‘rfred ground
s ._,mall within the continental U.S. and when sént to a named individuai.

-.7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to-transmit Confldentlal Data

said devices must be encrypted and password- protected _ . _
) - . ' ] Inifial ‘
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-

1.

Open Wireless Nefworks. End User may not transmit Confidential- Data via an open

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network. - .
Remote User Communication. if End User is employing remote communication to access
or{ransmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End

User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTR), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the

Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all

~ data must be encrypted fo prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After.such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any

. derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under

this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A.

" Retention-

1. The .Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
‘connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of

cloud computing, cloud service or cioud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. '

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring ca_pabili'ties are in place
to detect potential security events that -can impact .State of NH systems and/or -
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees_, to provide security awareness and education forits End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location arid identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor ‘agrees Confidential Data stored ‘in"a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH ¢ompliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported - and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, .
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as
-a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detéction and firewall protection.

. I?ial
Contractor Initials @
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6.

The Contractor agrees to and ensures its. _complete cooperatlon with the States .
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerablhty of the hosting -
mfrastructure '

B. Dtsposition

1-‘

If the Contractor wrll malntarn any Conﬂdentral lnformatlon on rts systems (orits sub~~
ccntractor systems) the Contractor wrll maintain a documented process for securely
drsposrng of such data upon request or contract termlnatlon and will obtain written
certlfrcatron for-any State of New Hampshlre data destroyed by the’ Contractor or
any: subcontractors as a part of ongoing; emergéricy, ‘and or disaster recovery

f"operatlons -When 1o ‘longer n-use, -electronic media containing State of New

Hampshlre data:shall be .rendered unrecoverable via. a:zsecure-wipe program in

.accordarice with 1ndustry-accepted standards. for .secure deletion and media

sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, dégaussing) .
as descrlbed in NIST ‘Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media-

E Sanltlzatron National Institiite of Standards and Technology, U. S Department of

" “Commerce. The Contractor will’ document and certlfy in writing - at’time of the data
.+ ‘destruction; and -will provide written certification to the Department upoh requiest.
' . The writtén-certification will mclude all details necessary ‘to demonstrate data has

been properly destroyed and vahdated - Where “applicable, “regulatory and
professional standards for retention requrrements will be jorntly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destructron ’ :

Unless otherwrse specrf ied, w1th1n thlrty (30) days of the termlnatlon of this'Contract,
Contractor agrees 10" destroy aII .hard copres of . Confidential Data us:ng a- secure
method. such as shreddlng ' A

Unless other\mse specrfled wrthln thirty (30) days of the termrnatlon of thls Contract
Contractor agrees to completely destroy 4l electronlc Confldentlal Data by means

N of data erasure also known as secure data wiping.

IV PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS' Data’ received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1.

The' Contractor will malntam proper security controEs to protect Department confldentlal .
information coIIected processed managed andfor stored in the dellvery of contracted
; serwces o ~ :

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle;: where applicable, (from. creation,
transformation,-use, storage and secure destruction) regardless ¢f the media used to

store the data (i.e., tape, d]Sk paper, etc.).

' Initial
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. ‘The -Contractor will rhaintain appropriate authentication and acéess controls to

contractor-systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable. | - : e .

_The‘Cbntrac‘tor will é’hsure'iprop_er securit)f monitoring capabilities are in place to detect

* ‘potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department

confidential information for contractor provided systems,

The Contractor will provide regu!ar‘sec‘uri';cyawar'eness and edué_a’tion for its End Users

-in support of protecting Department confidential information.

" If the Contractor will be sub-contracting -any core- functions of the engagemeit .

supporting the services for State. of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

. 'program-of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
- and-monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a.minimum match those for

- the Contractor, including breach notification: requirements.

- The Contractor will work wi:th"th‘e Deiaartmerﬁ to sign’ and 'corﬁply with all' applicable

State of“Ne‘w Hampshire _{a’ind} Department system access and authorization policies and

o procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining

and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed -
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
being ,"author‘i;ed; T . ‘ o L

If the Department determines the Coritractor is a Busifles,s .Assoc'iate pursuant.to 45

* CFR 160.103,-the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreerhent

agreement.

(BAA) with the Department énd is responsible for maintaining compliance with the

. ‘:Tﬁeé’Con{Fa’é{br_Will work with the Déba&ment at its quuest' to comﬁleté'a System

Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

 Contractor to monitor for ‘any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

_occur over the life of the Contractor engagement.-The survey will be completed

" annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by

10

the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the*engag_ement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

Th_éf Contraqtér will not sfore,, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire . -

" or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior

. member within'the Department.

11.

express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership

-

Data Security Breach Li_ability. Inthe event of any security ‘br_eacﬁ'Contr,actor shall make

. efforts toinvestigate. the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

VB: Last update 10/09/18

. ‘ Initial '
Contractor Initials @

o " 9/5/2024 -
. Pagegofg .- e _ Date _
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

[

future breach-and -minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of: response and recovery from

Y

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monrtonng services, mailing costs and '
-.costs associated with website and telephone call center services: necessary due to the -
breach ;

' 12, Contractor must,” ¢omply w1th all applrcable statutes and regulations regardlng the
S prlvacy and securlty of Confldentlal Information, and must in all other respects maintain
* the privacy and securlty ‘of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is hot less than the level
and scope:of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provrsmns of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C: § 552a), DHHS.Privacy Act Regulations .
'(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy-and Security Rules (45 C.F.R.-Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for mdnndua[ly 1dent1f1abfe health mformatlon and as applicable
under State law. . e T . ~
'8! Contractor agrees to establlsh and malntam appropnate admtnlstratlve techmcal and
' physical safeguards to protect the confldentlallty of the Confidential Data and to prevent'
unauthorized use or.access to it. The, safeguards must: prowde a level and scope of
secunty that is, not. Iess than the fevel and scope,of security reqturements established -
" by.the- State of,New Hampshlre,rDepartment of Information Techno[ogy Refer.to - -
Vendor ResourceslProcurement at httpsi/iwww, nh gov/doitivendor/index.htm for the
Department of Information Technology. policies, gwde]mes standards and
procurement mformatlon relatmg to vendors .

Lt

T

14. Contractor agrees to malntaln a documented breach notlf” catlon and iricident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officér-and the ‘State’s Security
Officer-of any security:breach |mmed1ately, at the email addresses provrded in Section
V1. This includes a cont” dential |nformat|on breéach, computer secunty mcrdent or -
suspected breach which affects or lncludes any State of New Hampshlre systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network. " 2

15, Contractor must restrict access to the Conﬁdentlal Data obtamed under this Contract

" . _to only-those authorized End Users who neéd stich DHHS' Data to perform therr offi cral
duties in connectlon wrth purposes |dent|f|ed in this Confract.

16 The Contractor must ensure that all End Users

-a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Sectlon IVA above Jmpfemented
' to protect Confldentlal Informatlon that is furnlshed by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or [nadvertent dlsclosure '

b. “safeguard this, mformatlon at all tlmes

" c. ensure thiat- laptops” and other electronlc dewceslmedra contalmng PHI, Pl, or
’ ._F’Fl are encrypted and password- protected ‘ .

’ Contractor lnltrals

V5. Lastupdate 10/08/18 - T T : SR 9/5/2024
- e ' Page.? of ¢ L Date
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New.Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
A Exhibit E
DHHS Information Sécurity Requirements

d. send emails containing .Confidential Information only'if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
' infprmafti,on.

€. limit disclosure of ;the Confidential Information to ‘the extent permitted by la;:v'.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any

~ derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,

- such data must be encrypted at all times when in-transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
.. using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved. ' : '

I understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
'shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application. : . :

. Contractor is Tesponsible for oversight and compliance of their End.Users, DHHS

. reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other

. applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract. I '

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must n_dti_fy the State’s Privacy Officer and Sécurity Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documernited Incident Handling ‘and Breach Notification
‘pr'owce_durefs and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding; Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
‘Contractor's procedures must 4lso address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents: .
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. . Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

- Initial
Contractor Initials @

V5, Last update 10/09/18 . . + 9/5/2024
- : : Page 8 of 9 ) Date
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Identlfy and convene.a core response group to determrne the risk’ Ievel of Inmdents and
determlne nsk—based responses to lncldents and ke . :

5“ Determlne whether Breach notlﬂcatlon |s requlred and rf so 1dentrfy approprlate Breach "
" notification methods, timing, 'source, and contents from: among different: optlons and
bear costs assocrated W|th the Breach notlce as’ wel[ as any mltlgatlon measures

Incrdents andlor Breaches that tmphcate PI must be addressed and reported as apphcab!e
.in accordance w;th NH RSA 359 C:20.

P

o

VL PERSONS TO CONTACT

A DHFiS F’nvacy Offlcer ‘_ o o
, DHHSanacyOfflcer@dhhs nh gov B
DHHS Secunty Off|cer

DHHS!nformatlonSecuntyOfﬁce@dhhs nh gov

T

R ' l?ial
: - Contractor lmtrals @
V5! Last update 10/09/18 -, _ ’ SR S _A_' . s - ) 9 /5 /202 4
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
("Agreement’), and any of its agents Who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department” shall be referred
to as the “"Covered Entity,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the
parties.” S ‘ ) !

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIII,
Subtitle D, Parts 182 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,

" et sec., applicable:to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42:USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may bé amended from time to time.

(1)  Definitions

a’ The_fdllowing terms shall have the same meaning as défined in HIPAA, the 'HITECH
- Act; and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time: -

“Breach,” _“Designate'd Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,”“Deéignated Record
Set,” “Health Care Operations,” “HITECH Act,” “Individual,” “Privacy Rule,” -

- “Required by law,” “Security Rule,” and “Secretary.”

b.  Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that-includes privacy and.confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c.  “Constructively Identifiable,” means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of

_ the-information. : .

d.  “Protected Health Information” (“PHI") as used in the’ Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 456 CFR 160.103, limited to .
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e.  “Part 2 record” means any patient “Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and “Patient
Identifying Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information -
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Stanhdards Institute. B ’

(2)  Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information
a.  Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including bt —inita
| “ | M

Exhibit F

. . - Contractor Initials
Business Associate Agreement

Page 1 of 5 ' ‘ 9/5/2024
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Ilmtted toallits. dlrectors officers, employees and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constltute a wolatlon of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2

b. Busmess Assomate may use or drsclose PHI, as apphcab[e
. Forthe proper management and admmlstratlon of the BusmessAssoc:late
Il.  As required by law, according to the terms set forth'in paragraph ¢. and d. below;
M. Accordtng to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

V.. For data aggregatlon purposes for the health care operatlons of the Covered
Entlty, and .

"V: Datathat is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
" -~ may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

C. To the extent Business Assocrate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other

_ agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
- ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included i in those business associate

~ agreements W|th the third party or subcontractor.

od. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or

‘ demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena of tourt order, on the basis that it
is required by law, witholit first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
‘determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
‘the Business Associate agrees to refrain fram disclosing the PHI" and shall
cooperate with the'Covered Entity in any.effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for-disclosure, subpoena, or other. legal process: If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resnst any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceedlng S -

(3) . Obltgatrons and Actlwt!es of Business Associate

a. Business Assocrate “shall |mplement appropr:ate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to eléctronic PHI, and Part 2, as’ applicable.

b.- The Business Associate shall |mmedaately notify. the Covered Entity's Privacy -
Officer at the following email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov after the
Business Associaté has determiined that any use or dlsclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected pnvacy ‘or security incident or breach -
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertént or-accidental uses or dlsclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information. .

c. In the event of a breach, the Bussness Assocrate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreenient, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulatrons and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

“d.  The Busmess Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the tlme it becomes aware of any known or su3pected privé,—initial
grm

Exhlblt F

L ) Contraclorlnmals
: . Busmess Assocrate Agreement -~ '
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the

Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

l. The“névture and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the [ikelihood of re-identification;

li. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information; : ' '

lll. Whether the protected health informétion was actually acquired or viewed:; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
.~ hasbeen mitigated.

€. The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
.the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate’s investigation. -

f.  Business Associate shall make available all 6f its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and th

Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable. :

g.  Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
~ bhave access to PH! under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to. the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

~h. Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,

" Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices

all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and

- disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to

determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms -of the BAA and the
Agdreement. -

..~ Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,

: Business'Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set fo the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR. Section 164.524,

] Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shali make such PH! available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 184.528.

k. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PH| and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. : ' '

L Withinten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill

its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect. to. '?'a"
: , Exhibit F _ , - T (b/ M

. ) ) . Contractor Initials
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. : q i ccountlng of PHI-
“‘*dlrectly from the‘-Buslness Assomate the Busmess Assq" shall"wnhm five (5)
business days forward such request to COVered Entity. Covered Entlty shall.have
. : the: responsrbtllty of responding to forwardéd requests However if: forwardlng the
sindividual's request to Govered Entlty would; cause Covered Entlty orthe Business ..
Associate to: vrolate HIPAA":and the' anacy .and Securlty Rule,:the Business -

and. -notlfy-Covered Entlty of_such Tesponse as soon as prac able

Wrthln‘thuty (30). busrness days of termrnatlon of the Agreement r any reason,
-th'e Business Assoclate shal[treturn or destroy, as specrfled by Covered Entlty, al-
: ed om or created or recerved ) f > Bus ",""" S8 r connectlon )

.‘_greemfént, to such PHI'and tlmlt':furtherﬁuses and dl
ose purposes that: make the return or destructl_ I

IosUres of, such
nfeasiblé’ for as
: red.Entity, inits
scr;etion,, req’uireS that he_BuSineSS ‘A‘Ssociate 'deStrciy any or all PHI,
iNEss Assocrate sha!l certlfy t.' Ce vered Entlty that the PHI has been

S a Covered Entlty shall postﬁa current vers:on of' the Notlce of the anacy Practlces :
L on the Covered Entltysweb31te : ‘ ol )

S https Ilwww dhhs nh. govlooslhrpaa!publlcatrons htm in accordance W|th 45 CFR |
) Sectlon 164 520 - ; e T

“e

' revocatron of permrssmn prowded to: Covered Entlty by mdmduals whose.PHI mayﬁ"' '
-be used or.disclosed by Business, Assocrate under this_ BAA pursuant to 45 CFR
: ::Sectlon 164 506 or: 45._CFR Sectlon _164 508 L e T L

o Co Covered entlty hall promptty .otlfy Busmess Assoclate of any rest; tlons on the
. ;iiuse of d|sclosure .of PHI that: Covered Entity-has- agreed'tosin ‘accordance with 45 -
_CFR 164.522, 't the extent that such restnctton may affect Busmess Assomates
‘use or dlsclosure of PHl - _ . S

5 Ie rmination ot Ag gment for Cgus_e,‘_ . : :
a- In.addition to the General,.Pr_owsmns (P-S?) of the Agreement ‘the Covered Entlty e

= fAssoCrate shall mstead respond to the: mdlvrdual S request as required’ by such Iaw . o

. may, |mmed|ately terminate the Agreement upon.Covered Entity’s knowledge ofa . :

o matenal breach by Busmess Assomate of the Business Associate Agreement The

_Covered”Entlty ‘may either |mmed|ately terminate- the. Agreement or provide an

: opportunlty for Busmess Assomate 1o cure the alleged breach w1th|n a tlmeframe"
specmed by Covered Entlty - :

. ®) Mlscellangou '

Deflnltlons Laws and Regulatory References AII Iaws and regutattons

T

R P Exh:bltF . :
- gt g'~ Do T R Contractorlmllals
[ BusmessAssomateAgreement R
© “Page 4 of5 e T 9/5/2024
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* herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as -amenaed from time to time. A*
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include -this Business Associate
Agri?gmgnt, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or

! as amended. : o .
b.  Change in law- Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
- to comply with the chianges in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part.2 other
-a'pplicab!e federal and state law.

c.  Data Ownership- The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by. or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

~d. Interpretation. - 'The parties agree that any ambiguity in the. BAA and the

+ "Agréément shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate -
~  to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2. o |

e. Segré'g' ation - If any term 6{ condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any.

person(sy or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms

or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this

. end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable. ‘
f. - Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
- ordestruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and

(3) n.I., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Adreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this. Busines_s __Associéte
Agreement. - < ’ . § : .

Department of Health and Human Services

“Thrive Survivor Support Center

The State

bocuSlgned by: '
l [Pdﬂ‘&l;- M-' T!“LT

84GFB38F5BFDACH..,

(e

. Signature of Authorized Representative -

Patricia M. Tilley

Name of the Contractor

FFD3BEBCSCSD437... . .
Signature of Authorized Representative

Jessi ;a{ vaughn-Martin

Ném_e of Authorized Representative

JAssociate Commissioner

Namie of Authorized Representative

Executive Director

Titie of Authorized Representative

9/6/2024

Title of Authotized Representative

9/5/2024

Dajte

Business Assoclate Agreement
Page 5.0f&
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State of New Hampshlre
_Dé'partn"'n_ent of State-

CERTIFICATE

I, Davic; M. Scanlan, S'e'crét.;aryﬂof State of the State of New Harﬁﬁghifc, do hereby certify that TIiRIVE SURVIVOR-MSI:III’PORT
CENTER isa New Hampshlre Nonproﬁt Corporatlon registered to transact business i in New Hampshlre on Apnl 17 1978. I,

’ further cemfy that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standmg as
far as this ofﬁqg is c)oncemed.l ‘ '

P *
: [

o _Busmess ID 62811 , L e
'CertlﬁcateNumber 0006772602 R 8

IN TéSTIMONY WHEREOE,

I heyeto set'_my_ hand and causé to be affixed
- the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of September A.D. 2024,

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

, hereby ceﬁify that:

I, Claire Gruenfelder, Boar& Ci;air . :
' {(Nameof the elected Officer of the Corporation/LL.G; cannot be contract signatory)

- 1..| am a du[y alected C]erkjsecretary[Ofﬁcer of Thrive Survivor Support Center FIKA Crisis Center of Central NH
(Corporation/LLC Name) '

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders; duly called and

~ held on August 21 » 2024 _, at which a quorurn:of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
{Date)
VOTED: That Jessica Vaughn-Martin , Executive Director L (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Thrive Survivor Support Center _ to enter into contracts or agreements with the. State
' {Name of Corporation/ LLC) :

. of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
“docuiments, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in hisfher judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vofe has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the'
- date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is Understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with

the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 9/5/2024 .
' Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Claire Gruenfelder
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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‘ . MERRCOU- o1 _DBEAUL
ACORD o 'CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE . N azuge

DBEAUDOIN

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE. CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE 18 ISSUED AS“A A'ITER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT. AFFIRMATIVELY OR. NEGATIVELY AMEND EXTEND OR-ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED.BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS .CERTIFICATE OF INSURANGE. DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT

If. the certlflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED the. pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the ferms and condltlons of the policy, certain pollc[es may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer nghts to the certificate holder in Iieu of stich endorsement(s). .

PRODUCER s jgﬁTACT .
?fg"{lfi;fg‘fggahgmf!"&Evefeﬂ inc. A1C o, Exty: 603) 225-6611 Imé, No:(B03) 225-7935
Concord; NH 03301 RBhHEsS: _ - :
- IHSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # -
INSURER & : Phill adelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED- . INSURERB
* Thrive Surwvor Support Center UNSURERC :
P.O, Box 1344 - INSURERD :
. Conoord NH 03302
. INSURERE :
L BN . INSURERF:
COVERAGES - . CERTIFICATE NUMBER - T REVISION NUMBER.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY F‘ERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM .OR CONDITION -OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITHRESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY.BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY;THE-POLICIES.DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THETERMS
|- EXGCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAINS.

R ““TYPE OF INSURANCE . - [AODLISUBR) L potLicy NUMBER (EPJOMLEE'CQYMEFF iﬁﬁ}""m 5% s ol
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY * | . ) EACK OCCURRENCE s -1,000,000
| cLams-waoe OCCUR PHPK2649176 311312024 | 31312025 | BRMAGEIORENTED o ils | 100,600
|| SR : "MED EXP (Any one persend_ | § 5000
L PERSONAL & ADY INJURY s 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT ARLIES PER: B GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 2,000,000
pouior | 5 [ e PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG g 2,000,000
OTHER: = - N $ .. .
A A_u'romom LIABILITY . ; %(gnggésueosmov.euwr s 1,000,000
| [ anvauTd S e B " PHPK2649176 3/13/2024 | 31312025 | gopiLy INJURY (pergerso ) s
| S oniy i ol e ‘ BODILY INJURY (Per accident | §
12X RS oy RGNS Fﬁe‘r’EcEcmDA”AGE s
) - $
UMBRELLA LIAB OGGUR / EACH OCCURRENCE s '
| Exeess Lias CLAIMS-MADE : AGGRéG ATE s
- |oeo | | revenrions s
e Fhine | [
| ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
. PJﬂI%E%PVE%ER EXelupeo? e ELL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] §
ggzgfsﬁgg OF SPERATIONS below EL:DISEASE . POLICY LIMIT | 5

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS | LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Echedule, may ba attached if mere space is required)

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER _

State of NH Department of Health & Human Services

. 129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATNE

—mithg f ('I..r.q,-.t.?m .

ACCRD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988:2015 ACORD CORPORATION All rIghts reserved.

-The ACORD name and Iogo are registered marks of ACORD
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J 2 Y ‘ DATE (MDA
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE SR

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
__REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER; AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, c - ‘ :

IMPORTANT: If the cerfificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of t

policy(ies) must Have ADDITIONAL-I_NSURED provisions or be endorsed.

he policy, 'cé“rtéin’ policies may require an endorsement.’ A statement on

this certificate does'not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s)..

PRODUGER Habe, ! daimie Warren , ]
Avery Insurance | FHORE | (603) 569-2515 | {45 ey (603) 569-4266
21 South Main Street B jaimie@averyinsurance.nat . .
PO Box 1510 - .  INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC
Wolfeboro NH 03894-1510 | \ysurera: Allied Eastern Indemnity Co -1242
INSURED INSURER B ¢

Thrive Surviver Support Center INSURER C :

PO Box 1344 INSURER D ¢

‘ INSURER E :

Concoerd NH 03301 INSURERF : .

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: _ 24-25 MASTER REVISION NUMBER:

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE

THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE PCLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRISED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO'ALL THE TERMS,

BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. B

TSR ADDLISUER] - FOLICY EFF . | POLICY EXP .
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | wvd POLICY NUMBER (MM/DBIYYYY) | (MMIDDIYYYY) UMITs
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH GCCURRENCE s
" | GAMAGE T0 RENTED
CLAMS-MADE I:' OCCUR PREMISES {Ea eccurrence) $
MED EXP {Any one person} ]
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 5
GEN'L AGGREGATE LiMIT AFPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s
POLICY s Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIORPAGG | &
OTHER:. §
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COBINED SINGLE LIMIT .
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per persory | §
OWNED - SCHEDULED :
| e sy Souen BODILY INJURY (Per accident). | §
—| HRED NON-OWNED PROFERTY DAMAGE s
|| auros ony AUTOS ONLY {Per accident) -
: s
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 5
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 5
DED | | RETENTION § - : . $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER oTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiN . X| STATUTE ] ER s
A [OFriceRMEmBER oxctupEDr e [N ]| 0000118440 07/01/2024 | 07/03/2025 | E:k EACHACCIDENT :
(Mandatory in RH} — : EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOVEE | 5 500,000
Ifyes, describe undar 500.000
DESCRIPTION OF CPERATIONS bolow EL DISEASE -roucyumr | s 509

Coverage as per terms and conditions of policy. -

DESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS f LOCATIONS f VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks $chedule, may be attached If more spaco Is requirad)

_CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Dept of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St -

. Concord
s ]

NH 03301-2857

" SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
“ACCORDANGCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

2 N

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

" The AGORD name and logo are registered marks

© 1588-2015-ACORD GORPORATION. All tights reserved.
of ACORD ) b
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A 'I_'ﬁri've Survivor Support Centef

Mission Statement: To serve.j' survivors of domestic violence, sexual viclence and
human frafficking through empowerment, safety and support; and to promote
prevention through educatlon in Mernmack County NH - .

VI5|on The eradlcatlon of domestlc and sexual VIOIence and human trafflcklng 1n
our communlty '

- Ubdétédmne 2024
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Tune 30, 2023 and 2022

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS
June 30,2023 .
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Directors

Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire

Concord, New Hampshire

Opinion

- We have audited the accompanying financjal Statements of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the ycar-then ended, and the related notes to the

_ financial statements. ' '

In our opinion, the financial étatcments present fairly, in al| material respects, the financial position of Crisis Center of
Central New Hampshire as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. ‘

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Respensibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are required to be independent of Crisis Center of Central New
Hampshire and 16 meet-our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relafing to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
.opinions. . : -

Responsif;ilities, of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
ntaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or Error. ) :

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to, evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s ability 1o continue
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether du to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinior. Reasonable
assurance isa high'level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government A udliting Standards will always detect a material

. misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements,
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government A uditing Standards, we:
» Exercise professional jridgment-__end maintain professional skepticism throughont t_'he audit. -

*  Identify and assess the risks of material miestatement of the financial statements, whether dug to fraud or error,”
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understending'bf internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances; but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Crisis
Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal contiol. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. :

v ° Conclude whether, in‘our judgmment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
 substantial doubt about’ Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s abrllty to continue as a going concem for a
reasonable perlod of time. .

We are requ 1red to commumcate wrth those charged w1th govemance regarding, among other matters, the ‘planned scope
and timing of the audit, srgmﬁcant audrt findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audlt

Supplementary Inform ahon

" Our audit was conducted for the purpase of formmg an opinion on the ﬁnancral statements as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform

. Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a requrred part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the audmng procedures apphed in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accountmg and other records used to prepare-the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in decordance with audrtmg standards general[y accepted in the United States of America. -
In our bpinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all matenal respects in relation to the  ~
financial statements as a- whole i

N

Other Reportmg Requlred by Govemment Arrdr!mg Stmrdﬂrds

In accordance with Government Auditing Standar ds, we have also issued our report dated November 6, 2023, on our
consideration of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal control over financial reportmg and on our tests of its
‘comphance with-certain provisions of laws regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testmg of internal control over financial reportmg and cempllance and the
results of that testing, and not to provrde an opinion on the effectiveness of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshrre ]
internal confrol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal control
over ﬁnancml reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information -

The June 30, 2022 financial statements were reviewed by other accountants, and their report thereon, dated December 19,
2022, stated they were not aware of any material modifications that should be made to those financial statement for thcm to
be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Untied State of America. However, a review is -
substantially less in scope than an audit and does not prov1de a basis for the exprcssron of an oplnlon on the ﬁnanc:a[
statements as a whole.

Rowley & Assocrates P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
Novcmberlﬁ, 2023

2- 0,
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

See Independent Auditors' Report

(Audited) (Reviewed)

L 2023 2022
ASSETS :
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents % 452,552 $ 468,925
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Donor Restricted 42,537 L.
Grants Receivable . 234,230 238,695
Pledges Receivable - ' 350
Prepaid Expenses . 10,985 2,645
. Total Current Assets . 740,304 ) 710,615
-PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land - : ' . 130,400 5,600
. Buildings and Improvements . 972,310 426,842
" Furniture and Equipment . 24,199 © 4,199 -
) ) : A 1,126,909 o 436,641
Less Accumulated Depreciation ¢ (121,486) : (105,794)
Total Property.and Equipment, Net 1005423 330,847
OTHER ASSETS ‘ _ ‘
Intangible, Net of Accumulated Amortization 6,684 8,733
Deposits ' : 1,800 _ 1,800
Total Other Assets - _ 8,484 . 10,533
Total-Assets . $- 1,754,211 3 1,051,995
. LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES . . .
Accounts Payable oo h 8,426 ) 5 -
Accrued Expenses ' 23,826 21,908
Deferred Revenue 5,350 15,258
Note Payable, Current Portion : 11,313 -
Total Current Liabilities 48,915 37,166
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
* ~-Note Payable, Less Current Portion 88,235 -
NET ASSETS . , - . _
Without Donor Rgstrictions o 1,574,524 1,014,829
With Donor Restrictions . . 42,537 ‘ . -
Total Net Assets . 1,617,061 ' 1,014,829
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3 1,754,211 $ 1,051,995

Notes to Financial Statements
3.
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. Statements of Actmtles and Changes in Net Assets

'Year Ended J une 30, 2023, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended J une 30, 2022

See Independent Auditors’ chort '

CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT
Grant Revcnue
Contributions
Contributions, In—KJnd
. Contnbutlons Non:Cash C
. -Fundralsmg Event Net Costs of $23,842 & $6,950
Interest Income =
Mlscellaneous Income )
Losson D1sposal of Property & Equlpment
'_I‘ot41 S__upport and Revenue
Net Assets Released from Donor
Imposed Restrictions *

EXPENSES
Prpgrani Services -
‘Management and General
Fundraising '
.. Total Expenses

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
. NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

. Net'Assets

3 42,537 § 1,617,061

Notes to Finangial S__ta_t¢m_énts

4

"Net-Assets’ N
Without Donor ~ With Donor- - (Audited) . (Reviewed) .
-Restrictions  ° Restrictions” 2023 Lt 12022
$ 1359349 $5 - - § 1359349 § 810211 -
221,544 - 90,116 ' 311,660 111,010
38,991 - S - 38,991 "38,641
23,056 - 23,056 *26,070
. 27,705 - 27,705 36,905
o 195 - 195 30
1,039 - T 1,039 - 2885
K : - - - (6,420)
<. 1,671,879 90,116, 1,761,995 . - 1,019,332 -
47,579 (47579 . . - -
851,400 . 831400 729,029
236,852 - 236852 224,738
_T1,511 - 71510 29,121
1,159,763 - - 1,159,763 . - 982,888
" 559,695 42,537 6022320 . 36444
1,014,829 - 1,014;829 978,385
$ 1,574,524 $ 1,014,829
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‘Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2023
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With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2022
See Independent Auditors' Report

_ Salaries and Wages

Payroll Taxes

Employee Benefits
Pension Plan Contributions
_ Direct Program Expenses
Phone & Advocacy Hotline
Donated Supplies:

Utilities

Rent Expense -

Office Expense
Communications
Professional Fees
Information Technology
Depreciation

' Insurance

- Accounting Fees

Miscellaneous .
Bank, Credit Card and Other Fees
Repairs and Maintenance
Parking Expense .

Dues and Membership
Conferences and Training Travel
Advertising/Public Awareness
Amortization

Grant to Other Organization Bad
Debt

Total Functional Expenses

(Audited) (Reviewed)
Progr;im . Management Total ' Total
Services & General Fundraising 2023 2022
$ 443,875 § 145592 § 54962 $ - 644429 § 502,056
36,315 . 11,756 TTA334 52,405 44,584
35,951 © 14,443 1,291 - 51,685 55,029
9,225 2,287 2,155 13,667 11,682
118,787 S - - 118,787 100,068
37,996 - .- 37,996 38,341
22,627 199 730 23,556 26,070
25,327 2,585 - 27,912 25,193
12,765 12,197 - . 24,962 - 23,900
13,789 3,717 718 - 18,224 "23,931
18,904 4,228 404 23,536 - 18,215
11,561 4,065 - T 15,626 16,108
. 6,126 7,253 - 13,379 14,956
15,692 - - 15,692 14,026
11,140 - 4,754 593 . 16,487 13,341
- 11,397 - : 11,397 9,046
44 3,865 99 © 4,008 8,727.
6,769 3,820 6,061. - 16,650 7,535
7,492 - - 7,492 6,547
5915 695 - 6,610 4,965
1,273 668 - 1,941 4,944
660 715 139 1,514 3,943
4,167 567 - 4,734 3,707
- - 25 o 25 2,922
- 2,049 - 2,049 2,757
5,000 - - _ 5,000 -
- - - - 295
$ 851400 $§ 236852 § 7,511 § 1,159,763 $ 982,888

Notes to Financial Statements

5.
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Cnsns Center of Central New Hampshlre ‘
‘Statemeiits of Cash Flows °

Years Ended J une 30, 2023 and 2022
_See Independént Auditors' Report

- T (Audited) . (Reviewed)
1 1 L. Jl“ ’ s . . v . 2023 2022
CASH FLOWS F ROM OPERATIN G ACTIVITIES ' . _ : ' o .
Increase in Net Assets - - © ~ ' - - § 602,232 $ 36444
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash - )
Prowded by, Operating Activities R -
Depreciation - ' - L : 15,692 14,026
- Amortization ;. . : T . ST 2,049 2,757 -
* ‘Loss on Dlsposal of Property and Equlpmeut s L - - 6,420
(Increase) Decrease in Operatmg Assets: C BRI CoT
Grants Receivable .~ - o - . 4465 (42,321)
. Pledges Receivable; Current ‘Portion - ‘ S . - " 350. - (350
Prepaid Expenses - (s, 340)‘_ (483)
Increase (Decrease) in Operatmg Llablhnes - PR o o
.. Accounts Payable - - .- . ' s . 8426 L (7,665)
: Accrued Payroll and Payro]l Taxes S X P 918 4,204
Accrued Vacatxon g L IR (13,483)
Deferred Revenue : -« .. ' ‘ I (9, 908) . (16,175)
’ 'NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . 616,834 .- .. (16,626)
_CASHFLOWS -FRoM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5 L |
* Purchases of Property and Equipment . : © 1 (690,268) - - (14,925)
' NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES I —(690,268) ., " (14,925)
' CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES | ' :
" . NetProceeds, Note Payable " . T -99,548 . -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINAN CING ACTIVITIES ' o o 99,548 . -
| NETINCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o 26,164 © (31,551
'CASH AND CASH EQUQ@I;‘I;NTS,'.'AT BEGINNING OF YEAR S 468,925 500,476
_CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR - ' § 495089 . 468925
! : - . . I-‘.- \ : ‘- ' N N -
' SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION -
Contributions, In-Kind B ’ A $ 38,991 $ 38,641
" Contributions, Non-Cash® =~ 8 2305 0§ 26070

_7../ ..‘_ .

. Notes to Financial Statements '
- b=
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire -
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTEA- NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire (the "Organization") is a non-profit corporation logated in
Concord, New Hampshire and serves the needs of adult and emancipated minor victims of domestic
violence and sexual assault in Merrimack County by staffing'a hotline and providing emergency shelter
. to victims of violence and their children. The Organization also provides appropriate referrals to social
service agencies in Merrimack County and assists victims in dealing with the courts and police.
Through public awareness and education, the Organization seeks to eliminate the conditions which
cause domestic violence and sexual assault. The Organization receives the majority of its funding from.
the New Hampshiré Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence: (NHCADSV) as disclpséﬂ in
Note C. . ' : : ‘

NOTE B- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as'applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and
 financial reporting principles for not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB’s gencrally
. accepted accounting principles applicable to the Organization, and the Organization’s conformity with
such principles, are described below. These disclosures are an integral part of the Organization’s
financial statements. 3 ' -

Basis of Presentation
The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two
classes of net assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally résult from revenues generated by
receiving contribuitions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest
from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising
contributions, and performing administrative functions. : ‘

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or

‘permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or
the purpose of the restriction is.accomplished. |

Basis of Accovinting _ ,

The Organization uses the accrual basis of. accounting in its financial statements. Under this basis,
revenue isrecognized when'earned rather than when payment is received, and expenses and purchases
of asscts are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when the cash is disbursed. -

Use of Estimates .

- The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain amounts reported-in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results experienced by the Organization may differ from management's estimates.

.
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Crrsrs Center of Central New Hampshrre
Notes to Fmancral Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 -

NOTE B— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIE gContmued)

Cash and Cash Eqmvalents -
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organ1zat10n con31ders all hlghly Irqurd mvestments
: (short-term investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial
maturity. of three.mionths or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation
of cash and cash eqmvalents reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the
correSpondmg amounts within the statement of cash flows as of June 30 :

2003 202

. ’Cash and Cosh Equivalents . $452,552 $468,925
Restncted Cash and Cash Equivalerits - . 42,537 ) T e

Total ‘ _ . S $495,089, . $468,925

. Grants Recewabl’e

E Accounts receivable consists of grants wlnch are recorded at cost. The Organization uses the dlrect

write off method to write off uncollectable accounts. The Organization doés not record an allowance
for doubtful accounts because managenient expects to collect all outstanding balances; this is not
consrdered a-departure from accounting principles generally acceptéd in the United States: ‘because the

,cffccts .of - the (direct write off miethod approximate those of the allowancc method The Orgamzatlon( "

does not charge 1nterest on accounts: recelvable .

Uncondtttonal Pledges Receivable .

. ,Uncondmonal promises to give that are.expected to be collected wrtlnn ‘one year are recorded at et
.-realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are’
recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their futiire cash flows. The
-d1scou11ts on those amounts are- computed using risk-adjusted interest rates apphcable to the years in
whlch the promlses are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue,

. Cond1t10nal promlses to gwe are not 1ncluded as support untll the condltmns are. substantlally met.

Property and Eqmpment

"The Organization's property and equipment pohcy isto cap1tallze 1nd1v1dual purchases renewals and :

betterments in excess of $2,500. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are charged to expense as
incurred. Perrodlcally, ‘management evaluates property and equipment for impairment when events or
changes in cncumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such dssets'may not be recovetable.
When items of property and equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated
deprecmtlon are removed from.the accounts and any gain or loss is included in the stateménts of .
activities. These items are deprec1ated usmg ‘the strarght 11ne method over their estimated useful lives

e as follows
Buildings and lmproverrrents ' ' . ~15-39 years-
Furniture and Equlpment . S 3-7 years

+

“ Deprecratlon expense record by the Orgamzatlon for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was
$15, 692 and $14,026, respectlvely :

-‘-Lg_
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire
. Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE B- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible Assets - :

The Organization owns intangible assets consisting of a.database management systein and website
developmient. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at initial cost.. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any acéumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which they relate. All other expenditures .
are recognized in the statemerit of activities as incurred. :

Intangible “assets with finite lives are’ amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
" impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. Changes in the
expected useful life-or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits: embodied in
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in expenses. The Organization does not hold any intangible assets with indefinite
lives. h ' - : ‘ -

Aniortization is recognized in the statement of activities on a straight-line basis over the egtimated.
useful life of the intangible assets from the date they are available for use. Amortization expense for
the years endéd June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $2,049 and $2,757, respectively.

Contributions and Promises fo Give , _

Contributions received are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor

restrictions depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions are recognized

when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the Organization. Contributions that are

restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction

expires in the fiscal year in which the contributions  are recognized. All other donor-restricted

contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions depending on the nature of .
the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictioris are reclassified to net

assets without donor restrictions.

Contributions are recognized under .FASB ASU 2018-08, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 938):
Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions
Made. Under this- ASU, contributions are not recognized as revenue if there are donor-imposed

~ conditions and barriers that must be overcome before the Organization' is entitled to the assets
transferred. Conditional contributions. can exist if the Organization has limited discretion over how
the resources are spent and the contribiitor retains a right of return to'the resources provided if the
conditions are not met. If contributions are received prior to the satisfaction of the donor-imposed
conditions and barriers, the advanced receipt of funds would be recorded as deferred revenue on the
statement of financial position. Once conditions have been substantially met, the contributions are
recognized as revenue and classified as net assets with or without donor restrictions depending on
remdining donor restrictions.
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire ’
Notes to Financial Statements -
Years Ended June 30 2023 and 2022

OTE B- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AC COUNTING POLICIES ( ContmuJ

G

Functwnal Alloaatlon of Expenses : L
The costs of. prov1d1ng the Organization’s program and other activities have been summanzed ona
functional. basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain “costs have been-
allocated .among the programs and supporting services benefited. . Expenses are charged to each
. program based on the dlrect expenses incurred or estlrnated usage based on time. spent on-each function -
~ by the staff. ' .
Cdntrtbuted Materials and Services . . .
Contributed. Serv1ces = In=Kind Contxibutions . . - . ,
" The. Orgamzatlon Teceives donated services from a substanual number. of unpald volunteers who have
made 31gmﬁcant contrlbutlons of their time to the 24 hour Crisis Line. The criterion for reco gnition of
such volunteer effort vinder generally accepted: accountmg principles is that the services must be
specialized skills, which would be purchased 1f not donated. All contributed services were considered -
-without donor restrlctlon atid were valuéd at-fair-market-value. This condition has been met. Total in-
kmd contnbutlons as of June 30 were as foIlows : :

| 2003 02
Phone &Advocacy Hotlme $37,996 $38,341 - -
Professlonal Sewlces e 995 7 300

o

Total : o - 838991 . . $38.641,

In add1t10n many 1nd1v1duals volunteer thelr time and perform a varlety of tasks that assist the l
Organization; these-amounts have not been recognized in the acéompanying; staterent of actlvmes
because the criteria for 1ecogmt10n as contrlbuted services has not been met

Contrlbuted Goods — Non-Cash Contributions . ‘

The Organization receives donated goods throughout the year. Contr 1buted goods Whlch may include
food supplies and equipment, have been recorded o the statemients of activity at their fair market.
value at the date of the contribution. Any-equipnient.contributed is capltahzcd and depreciated over its
' estlmated useful life. The Organization récéived $23,056 and $26, 070 in various supphes during the

years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Adverttsmg : N ; S
The Orgamzatlon coriducts non-direct Iesponse advertlsmg These costs are expensed as incurred.
Advertlsmg costs were $25 and $2, 922 for the years ended .Tune 30, 2023 and 2022, respectlvely

Income Taxes .

" The Orgaiiization has been notlﬁed by- the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal
incompe tax urider-Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization is further
classified s an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The
most significant tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes
and its determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The

- . Organization follows the guidance of Accounting Standards'Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for
Income Taxes, related to ungertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more likely than not
for recogmnon of tax posmons taken or expected to be taken in a tax return

‘ -;-'1 0-
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Crisis Center of .C_en'tral New Hampshire
Notes to Financial Statements '
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE B- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred Revenue < ‘ : .

Revenue 'is recognized when earned, however, funds received that are not eamed as of year-end are

recorded as a liability under deferred revenue. Deferred revenue arises when resources are received by

the  Organization before it has a legal claim to them. Deferred revenue related to an annual Fall
- fundraising event was $5,350 and $15,258 for the years ended June 30, 2023-and 2022, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
services and other factors. Employees must use their vacation time each fiscal year or forfeit that
time. There was no accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Financial Instruments oo . o

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, pledges receivable, prepaid
expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses are stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2023 and
2022, which approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments.

Leases '

The Organization adopted FASB'ASU2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) in the current period. The
Association has elected the short-term lease recognition exemption for all applicable classes of
underlying assets. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less, that do not include an option to
purchase the underlying asset that we are reasonably certain to exercise, are not recorded on the
statement of financial position. Therefore, the adoption did not have an impact on the Organization’s
financial statements. ' :

Comparative Financial Information . :
‘The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but
not by net asset class: Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute & presentation
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. ‘Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Organization’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,
from which the summarized information was derived. '

Reclassifications _
Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements lias been
reclassified to conform with current year presentation format. '

Subsequent Events . _ .

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 6, 2023, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and has not evaluated subsequent events after that date. No
subsequent.cvents were identified that would require disclosure in the financial statements.

-11-
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- Crisis Center of Central New Hampshrre - T “ . P -_‘
. Notes to Financial Statements . R
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 '

NOTE C- CONCENTRATIONS

Cask : R
The Orgamzatlon maintains its cash in three local financial institutions. “The accounts are- secured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up t6 $250,000. At various times. throughont the
yedr; the  Organization -mayhave cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured
. amount.” Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the

- Organization. The Orgamzatron had uninsured balances of $16,994 and $181,755 at June 30 2023 and
2022, respectlvely .

Major Source of. F. undmg .

The Orgamzatron is a’ pass-through entlty of the New Hampshlre Coalition Agamst Domestrc and
+ Séxual Violence (N HCADSV). Approximately 49% and 72% of the funds received by the Organization
are from grants allocated from" NHCADSV for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
In addition, substantlally all of the accounts receivable are owed to the Orgamzatron from NHCADSV*

at June 30 2023 and 2022.°
ANOTE D- CORPORATE ORGANIZATION _ s o

: 'The Corporatlon is a voluntary orgamzatlon under Chapter 292 of the New Hampshne Revised
‘Statutes Annotated and therefore ‘has no cap1ta1 stock. :

Beoep
hE

NOTE E- NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS N

Net assets w1th donor restrictions consist of funds recelved by the Orgamzatlon restrlcted as to use or
- time. The resmctlons are considered to expire when payments are made. As of Turie 30, 2022 the

- Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2023 the Orgamzatmn had net
assets with donor restrlctlons are available for the followmg purpose :

: Shelter Hotlme - o $ 2,500

. Youtl/Education Support : 11,865
Network Infrastructure ' 6,113

It Takes a Village ' : 11,050

) Client Support . _ ' 7,849,

- HF Clients _ : 660

~ Junior Service League ' 2,500

Total o $ 42537

NOTE F- BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS -

- For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 the Organization no board designated net assets.

12
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE G- LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Opemrmg 0_[f' ce Lease :
The Organization rerited its Concord;.New Hampshu‘e office space under a non-cancelable operating
lease.- The Organization entered into this operating lease in March of 2021, for a term of two years
maturing on March 31, 2023. The Organization extended the lease for a three-month period ending
June 30, 2023 when the Organization purchased a new office building. Rent expense retated to this
- agreement was $21,600 during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectwely There are no
: .future required minimum rents. - '

Operating Storage Lease < : -
The Orgamzatlon leases storage units as various rates. The lease agrecmcnts are each on a month-to- "
month basis. Rent expensé related to this agreement was $3,362 and $2,300 during the years ended-
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectlvely There are no future required minimum rents.

Operafmg Parking Leases

The Organization rents various parking spaces nearby its office and shelter locations. The lease
agreements may be terminated by either party with 30- -days’ notice. Rent expense related to this
agreement was $6,610 and $4,965 during the years ended June 30 2023 and 2022, respectively, There
are no future (requlred Minimum rents. ‘

NOTE H- NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has a.loan payable with a local bank, dated June 2023 and maturing June 30, 2030.
The interest rate is 7.625% and monthly payments are $1,546. The loan is collateralized by real estate.
The balance of the loan was $99,548 as of June 30 2023. Future maturities of long-term'dept as of
June 30 are as follows:

2024 $ 11,313

2025 12,207

2026 13,171

2027 - 14,211 : ‘ Cm

2028 15,333

Thereafter . 33.313
'$_99.548

NOTE I- RETIREMENT PLAN .

In February 2021, the Organization started a retirement plan under the Internal Revenue Code Section
403(b) for its employees through a third party. Eligible participants working more than 20. hours per
week may elect to make voluntary pre-tax elective salary deferrals or after-tax Roth deferrals each
year, not to exceed the maximum allowed by law. The Organization may contribute to the employees'
retirement fund at the Board's discretion. The Organization made contributions of $13,667 and
$11,682 under this plan for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

-13-
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Crisis Center of Central__Netv Hampshire
- Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended Juhe 30, 2023 and 2022

‘ NOTE J- LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Orgamzatxon has a policy to structure its financial assets to be avallable as its general
expendltures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The Organization’s primary source of
support is grants. That support is held for the purpose of supporting the Organization’s budget. The
Organization had the following financial assets that could be readlly made-available W1th1n one year to
fund expenses without limitations as of June 30 :

2023 2022

‘Cash and Cash Equivalents . $ 495,089 - $ 468,925
Grants & Pledges Receivable ' T 234,230 - 239,045
Less Amounts: .

~ With Donor Imposed Restriction _ (42.537) . -

At times; the Board of Directors ulay designate a portion of any operating surplus to its liquidity reserve
for future expenditures, however, there were no such designations at June 30, 2023. The Orgamzatlon-
beheves its 11qu1d financial assets are sufﬁment to fund unantlclpated hquldlty needs that may arise.

NOTE K- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair values of assets measured on'a recurrmg basis as of June 30 are as follows:

_ : _ o : , Significant Other”
2023 . ' - Fair Value - ' Observable Inputs (Level 2)
Grants receivable $234230 ° - - $234 ,230
Pledges receivable i - L _

- -7 $234.230 h) 234,230
2022 - o ) S ) ’ )
Grants receivable . $238,695 | $ 238,695
Pledges receivable - 35 _ 350

The fair market value of grants and pIedges receivable are estlmated at the present value of expected
future cash flows. The Organization reports transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy, if
any, at the end of the reportmg penod There were no such transfers at June 30 2023 and 2022,
respectlvely

NOTEL- covm-19 CONSIDERATIONS

[N

In March 2020, the Wor]d Health Orgamzatlon declared the outbreak of the novel” coronavirts.
(COVID 19) as a pandemic which continues to spread throughott the world. While the spread of this
- virus has catised-business d1srupt10ns across the United Statés, the Organization has not experienced
any mterruptlons to their activities as of the year ended June 30, 2023, While there rémains considerablé
uncertainty-around the duratioh of this pandemic, there are 1o gomg concetns W1th the Orgamzatmn 8
ablhty to contmue operatlons for the next year : : o :

~14_
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ROWLEY & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

46 N.STATE STREET
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

MEMBER : : * TELEPHONE (603)228-5400
*AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF FAX#(603)226-3532 MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS : COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

-~

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAT
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Crists Center of Central New Hampshire
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audlted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Crisis Center of.

Ceiitral New Hampshlre (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position
as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended,

and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, -
2023,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting- -

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Crisis Center of
Central New Hampshire’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
demgmng audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal control. Accordmgly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in mternal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in'the first paragraph of
this-section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in.internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

. weakunesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

-15-
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‘Report on Compliance and Other-'Matters

As part of obtammg reasonable assurance about whether Crisis Center of Central New Hampshlre s

financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulanons contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
_ could have a direct and material effect onl the financial statéments. However, providing an opinion on -

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordmgly, we do not-

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other :
: matters that are requlred to be reported under Government Auditing Standards

1
i

Purpose of ThlS Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
comphance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an op1r110n on the effectiveness of the
organlzatmn s internal control or on comphance This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with GovernmentAud;tmg Standards in considering the organization’s internal control
and compliance. Accordmgly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

W Mﬁa

Rowley & Assomates P C.
Concord, New Hampshire =~~~ . I
November 6,2023 ~ - . o L

~-l6-
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MEMBER - - TELEPHONE (603) 228-5400

AMERICAN INSTITUTE QF ' 3 FAX #(603)226-3532 o ‘ MEMBER OF THE PRIVATE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQULRED BY THE UNIFORM
' GUIDANCE )

Board of Directors
-Crisis Center of Central New Hampshne
Concord, New Hampshlre '

' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion 011' Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s compliance with the types of coimpliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could havea .
direct arid material effect on each of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questloned costs.

In our opinion, Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire complied, in all matenal respects, with the
types of comp]lance reqmrements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal prograrns for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opmlon on Each Major Federal Program .

We conducted our audit of comphance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;” and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Audltor s -
Respons1b111t1es for the Audit of Comphance section of our report.

We are required to be 1ndependent of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

17
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Responsibtlities"of Management: for Comphanbe

Management is: responsrble for compliance with the requirements referred to above and forthe des1gn, i

1mplementat10n ~and maintenance-of effective internal control over compliance with the réquirements
~ of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provrsrons of contracts or grant agreements apphcable to
Crisis Center of* Central New Hampshire’s federal programs.-

5

R

Audltor 5 Responsrblhtles for the Al.ldlt of Comphance

-t *

Our Obj ectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether material noncomphance with the
comphance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opmron on Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
. assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is.nota guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordarice with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidanee will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The .
R risk of not detectmg material noncompliance resultirig from fraud is highef than for that resultmg from
. error, as fraud may. involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or tlie
“override of, internal control Noncompliance with the compliance’ requirements referred to aboye is
‘considered material if-there isa substantial likelihood that, individually or in thé. aggregate, it would
. influénee the judginent.made by a reasonableuser of the report on comphance about Crisis Center of
Central New Hampshlre s comphance with the requrrements of each major federal programas a

whole -

'r,.‘.“ . 4w

In performmg an audrt in accordance wrth generally aeccpted audmng standards; Government
Audrtmg Standards, and the Unlfonn Guldance we: . :

o

'_ s=—°' - Tk s
I

Exerclse professmnal Judgment and maintain professronal skeptlcrsm throughout the audit. -
Identify and assess the risks of material noncomphance whether due to fraud or error, and -

'desrgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
“examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire’s -

compliance with the comphance requirements.referred to above and performmg such other
procedures as we considéred necessary in the circumstances, B

-Obtain an understandmg of Crisis Center.of Central New Hampshlre s mternal control over
-compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
" circumstances and to test and report on internal control over comphanee in accordance with the

Uniform. Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Crisis’ Center of Central New Hampshire’s internal controI over compliance, Accordmgly, no
such opinion is expressed. '

We are requrred to communicate with those charged with governance regardmg, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over comphance that we identified during the audlt
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
-compliance does not allow management or.empléyees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of'a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deﬁciency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency; or a combination of '
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
_enough to merlt attentlon by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance thiat might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any'deﬁcipncies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identiﬁ'ed.

Our audit was not des1gned for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectlveness of mternal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

" The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requ1rements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. :

M&MF&’

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
November 6, 2023 ’
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‘Cr1s1s Center of Central New Hampshire
Notes to Fmanclal Statemenits
Year Ended June 30 2023

SECTION 1- SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS '

1. The audltor s report expresses an unmodlﬁed opinion on the financial statements of the Crisis
Center of Central New Hampshire. :

2. No reportable condltlons relatmg to the audit of the finaricial statements are. reported in the
Independent Audltor s Report No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances. of noncomphance thaterial to the financial statements of Cr1s1s Center of Central New .
+.-Hampsghire, which would be required to be reported in accordance thh GovernmentAudttmg S

Standards were disclosed durmg the audit.
) <

4, No 31gmﬁcant deﬂcrencles in internal control ‘OVer major federal award programs are reported in the'
Independent Audltor s Report on Compliance for Each Major Pro gram and on Internal Coritrol Over
.Comphance Reqmred by the Umform Guldance No Materlal wcaknesses are reported '

5. The auditor’s report on compllance for the major federal award pr ograms for CI‘ISIS Center of
' Central New Hampshire expresses an unmodlﬁed opinion on all major federal programs.

6 Audlt ﬁndmgs that are requlred to be reported in accordance with'2 CFR sectlon 200 5 16(a) are
reported in thrs Schedule L ¢ _ :

7. The program tested asa mejor prograrn were:’
) ‘Stat;e .lrf!tdrnilzli.stered"C'.01‘11.1:nuni't'jr Developrnent Block Grant Program' ,14'225
8. The threshold for dlstmgulshmg Types Aand B Programs was: $750 000. -
‘ 9. The Cr1$1s Center of Central New Hampshrre was determlned to be a hlgh—rrsk auditee,

SECTION II FINDINGS F INANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT -

No matters were reported

- SECTION 11 - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED ( COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
ALDIT N

No_ n‘_latters were reported.

9
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

F ederal ) i
Assistance Pass-Through -
. Listing Entity ldentifying . Federal
Program Title : Number Number - Expenditures
. U S. Department of Housing and Urban Development;
Pass-Through Programs from the City of Concord, NH ‘ R ‘ ‘ :
State Administered Community Development Block Grant Program 14,225 23-150-CDPF 500,000
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS and '
NH Coalition Agamst Domestic and Sexual Violence: ) s .
‘ Contlnuum of Care’ Program 14.267 © 102-500731 . 20,082
TOTAL U. S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ' 520,082
. US. Degartment of Justice;
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice and
- NH Coalition Against Doméstic and Sexual Vlolence
VAWA, SASP : ' 16.017 2022SA801 - 45495
- VOCA, PMC Subcontracts ' ' - 16.575 2022vV0C03 277,619
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ‘ ’ ' . 323,114
_ U.S. Department of the Treﬁsﬁg- . ,
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of Justice and
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence: - .
Corondvirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds - Covid-19 *~ ~ 21.027 2023ARPVSI9 34,587
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY ' _ : 134,587
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS and
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violende: ‘
Sexual Violence Prevention - 93.136 102-500731 16,380
Family Violence Prevention Services Act 93.671 155510 B0OI 114,060
Family Violence Prevention Services Act - Covid-19 93.671 155510 B0C1 ~ ° 106,111
" Subtotal ' . 220,171
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES =~ . 236,551
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS : T § 1,114,334

* ' . 21-
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Crisis Center of Central New Hampshu'e -
Notes to Flnanclal Statements .
. Year Ended June 30,2023

NOTE A —BASIS OF PRESENTATION

_The accompanying schedule of expendltures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
-award activity of Crisis Center of Central New Hampshire under programs of the federal government-
for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this.Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requlrements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

: Reqmrements ‘Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Umform Guldauce)
Beeatise the-Schedule presents only a selected portion-of the operations of Crisis Cénter of Central

- New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does not present the financial posmon changes in net assets,
or cash ﬂows of Crisis, Center of Central New Hampshire. - -

NOTE B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expendltu.res reported on the S\chedule are reported on the accrual basis of accountmg Such -

- expenditures are recogmzed following the cost principles contdined in the Uniform Guidance, Cost
Principles for Non-profit Orgamzanons wherem celtam types of expendltures are not allowable or are
limited as to reimbursement. : :

2. Pass-through entlty 1de11t1fymg numbers are presented where avallable

_NOTEC INDIRECT COST RATE S o

~,

The Crisis Center of- Central New Hampshlre has not elected to use the 10% de mlnlmls indirect cost
rate as allowed under the Un1fonn Gu1dancc ‘ r - | .

22-



Docusign Envelope ID: 4FD34B97-8DA0-4732-A17D-8ABDIDAESCT 1

Thrive Survivor Support Center

Board of Dlrectors FY24 FY25

Claire Gruenfelder (Board Chalr)
Nicole Murphy (Vice Chair)
Laurie Bienefeld (Treasurer)
Rebecca E Bntennker (Secretary)

_ Andrew LaFIame (Dec 2023)
Elyse McKay (Feb 2024)
Jane Berlin Pauley (Jan 2022)
Neiko Lavery (Dec 2022) -
. Emily Marsh (Sept 2022)
Johane Telgener (Jan 2022)
Anne Tyrol (Mar 2022) .
Ronni Wise, Esq Retlred (Feb 2024)

Updated June 2024
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i

‘NH Depaﬁfnent of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

'

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

- . ’ " ‘Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Naine; . " Thrive Survivor Support Center

, NNU
= i it]u (CONTRAC: A

To Be Hired RRH Case Manager (salary & | ooo265.00 | $52,265.00

— fringe) . , . - :
. '$0.00.{ . . $0.00

- K | $0.00 | $0.00°
! ' : © . $0.00 $0.00
‘ $0.00 - $0.00
‘ _ $0.00 |  $0.00
)
7
o ’ J‘ l



